

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44

## Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

### Rates

#### **Pooled Money Investment Board**

[Notice of Investment Rates April 21 – April 27, 2025](#)

### Notices

#### **Kansas Guardianship Program**

[Notice of Meeting](#)

#### **Kansas Governor's Grants Program**

[Notice of Available Funding for the Federal John R. Justice Student Loan Repayment Program](#)

#### **Wichita State University**

[Notice of Intent to Lease Real Property at Innovation Campus, Wichita, Kansas](#)

#### **Fort Hays State University**

[Notice of Intent to Lease Real Property on the University Farm](#)

#### **Kansas Department of Administration – Office of Facilities and Property Management**

[Notice of Requested On-Call Architectural Services for Kansas State University](#)

#### **Kansas Department of Health and Environment**

[Notice of Proposed Kansas Air Quality Construction Permit for Koch & Company, Inc.](#)

[Notice of Proposed Kansas Air Quality Construction Permit for WindRiver Grain, LLC](#)

[Aviso sobre la propuesta de Permiso de construcción con potencial impacto en la calidad del aire para WindRiver Grain, LLC](#)

[Notice of Proposed Kansas/Federal Water Pollution Control Permits and Applications](#)

#### **Kansas Department of Health and Environment – Division of Health Care Finance**

[Corrected Notice of Amendment to the Kansas Medicaid State Plan for Physician Services and Reimbursement Rate Additions](#)

[Notice of Amendment to the Kansas Medicaid State Plan for Daily Enteral Nutrition Ages 0 to 4 Years](#)

#### **Kansas Department of Administration – Office of Procurement and Contracts**

[Notice to Bidders for State Purchase](#)

#### **Kansas State Board of Regents Universities**

[Notice to Bidders for University Purchase](#)

#### **Kansas Department of Agriculture – Division of Conservation**

[Notice of Authorization to Proceed with On-Call Engineering Services for Wildhorse Riverworks, Inc.](#)

[Notice of Authorization to Proceed with On-Call Engineering Services for Water Resources Solutions](#)

[Notice of Authorization to Proceed with On-Call Engineering Services for JEO Consulting Group, Inc.](#)

[Notice to Contractors for Pawnee Watershed Joint District No. 81 Dam Spillway Replacement Project in Pawnee County](#)

#### **Long-Scott Creeks Watershed District No. 93**

[Notice to Contractors for Dam Rehabilitation Project in Coffey County](#)

#### **Kansas Department of Transportation**

[Notice to Contractors for May 2025 Letting Information](#)

[Notice of Intent to Conduct Environmental Assessment](#)

[Request for Comments on Amendment to the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program](#)

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44

## Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

### Notices

#### **Workforce Partnership**

[Request for Comments on Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Local Area Plan](#)

#### **Kansas Department for Children and Families**

[Request for Comments on State Fiscal 2026 Social Services Block Grant](#)

[Request for Proposals for We Kan Drive Program](#)

### Executive Branch

#### **Office of the Governor**

[State of Disaster Emergency Proclamation](#)

### Legislative Branch

#### **Legislative Administrative Services**

[Interim Committee Schedule April 21 – May 9, 2025](#)

### Bonds

#### **Kansas Development Finance Authority**

[Notice of Hearing on Proposed Agricultural Development Revenue Bonds for Evan Zabokrtsky](#)

#### **City of Sedgwick, Kansas**

[Notice of Intent to Seek Private Placement Taxable General Obligation Bonds](#)

#### **Unified School District No. 235, Bourbon County, Kansas (Uniontown)**

[Summary Notice of Bond Sale](#)

#### **City of Osage City, Kansas**

[Summary Notice of Bond Sale](#)

#### **City of Manhattan, Kansas**

[Summary Notice of Bond Sale](#)

### New State Laws

#### **Kansas Legislature**

**Senate Bill 50**, concerning postsecondary education; relating to the financing therefor; establishing uniform interest rate provisions for scholarship programs that include repayment obligations as a condition of receiving a scholarship; authorizing the board to recover the costs of collecting such repayment obligations and to charge fees for the costs of administering scholarship, grant and other financial assistance programs; requiring eligible students to enter into agreements with the state board of regents instead of a postsecondary educational institution as a condition to receiving a grant under the adult learner grant act; reducing the number of grants available and audits required under the low-income family postsecondary savings accounts incentive program; providing the audit process for certain withdrawals made under such program

**Substitute for Senate Bill 193**, concerning the state board of pharmacy; relating to emergency opioid antagonists; exempting law enforcement agencies who do not provide emergency opioid antagonist pursuant to the statewide protocol from the requirement to procure a physician medical director

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44

**Issue 17 - April 24, 2025**

## New State Laws

**Senate Bill 199**, concerning fire protection; relating to the fallen firefighters memorial; designating the existing fallen firefighters memorial within the Kansas firefighters museum in Wichita as the official fallen firefighters memorial of the state of Kansas; creating the Kansas fallen firefighters memorial council; abolishing the existing Kansas firefighters memorial advisory committee and transferring such committee's powers, duties, functions, records and other property to the newly created council; requiring expenditures from the Kansas fallen firefighters memorial fund for the purposes of constructing, updating and repairing the memorial and allowing expenditures to be made for other purposes related to memorializing and honoring Kansas firefighters; relating to fireworks; defining the fireworks sales season for seasonal retailers of consumer fireworks and providing for year-round sales by permanent retailers of consumer fireworks; requiring registration with the state fire marshal by permanent retailers; creating the license categories of distributor of display fireworks, distributor of articles pyrotechnic and unlimited distributor; limiting lawful sale of fireworks labeled "For Professional Use Only" to certain license categories

**Senate Substitute for House Bill 2172**, concerning water; establishing the water program task force to evaluate the state's water program and funding for such program; requiring the task force to establish a water planning work group and submit reports to certain legislative committees and the governor

**House Bill 2242**, concerning federal jurisdiction; relating to federal property; authorizing the governor to accept requests from the federal government to establish concurrent jurisdiction in certain circumstances

## Regulations

**Index to administrative regulations**

State of Kansas

## Pooled Money Investment Board

### Notice of Investment Rates

The following rates are published in accordance with K.S.A. 75-4210. These rates and their uses are defined in K.S.A. 12-1675(b)(c)(d) and K.S.A. 12-1675a(g).

#### Effective 4-21-25 through 4-27-25

Term	Rate
1-89 days	4.33%
3 months	4.25%
6 months	4.15%
12 months	3.97%
18 months	3.88%
2 years	3.80%

Joel Oliver  
Executive Director  
Chief Investment Officer  
Pooled Money Investment Board

Doc. No. 053062

**State of Kansas**

## **Kansas Guardianship Program**

### **Notice of Meeting**

The Kansas Guardianship Program will conduct its governing board meeting from 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday, May 5, 2025, via Zoom. Please email requests for the Zoom link to [businessoffice@ksgprog.org](mailto:businessoffice@ksgprog.org). Please contact Nancy Mayberry at 785-587-8555 for more information.

Nancy Mayberry  
Executive Director  
Kansas Guardianship Program

**Doc. No. 053065**

**State of Kansas**

## **Kansas Governor's Grants Program**

### **Notice of Available Funding**

Funds are available from the Federal John R. Justice Student Loan Repayment Program for calendar year 2025. The purpose of this program is to provide student loan repayment assistance for full-time local, state, and federal government public defenders and full-time local and state government prosecutors who commit to serving as public defenders and prosecutors for at least three years. Kansas has \$63,070 available to award to prosecutors and public defenders. Federal John R. Justice Loan Repayment funds awarded under this program are a supplement to, not a substitute for, personal student loan obligations. To be eligible to receive funding, an attorney must not be in default on repayment of any federal student loans. For a copy of the grant application, please contact Kim Gerety at 785-368-6620 or [kim.gerety@ks.gov](mailto:kim.gerety@ks.gov). All applications must be postmarked to the Kansas Governor's Grants Program by June 4, 2025.

Juliene Maska  
Administrator  
Kansas Governor's Grants Program

**Doc. No. 053072**

## State of Kansas

### Wichita State University

#### Notice of Intent to Lease Real Property

Public notice is hereby given that Wichita State University (WSU), directly or through its affiliate corporation Wichita State Innovation Alliance, Inc., intends to lease, subject to all required state approvals, real property located on the Wichita State University's campus designated as the "Innovation Campus" for the private development and operation of a partnership building or buildings. There are three separate building sites available for private development. Proposals may be submitted for one or more of the sites. Each site is approximately one to two and a half acres in area, and will be customized based on the proposal for the respective site. Site #1 is located east of Woolsey Hall. Site #2 is located on the northwest corner of 17th and Innovation Boulevard. Site #3 is located on the northwest corner of 17th and Oliver. The university intends to lease each site for a mutually agreeable period, not to exceed sixty years, but extended terms and renewal options would be considered. Interested tenants must be willing to be a good fit with the university's educational mission and identify anticipated benefits to the university, its students, and the WSU community (i.e. applied learning, joint research, faculty start-up, WSU curriculum or program support, etc.), and must agree to the essential ground lease terms and restrictive covenants. Interested tenants will be evaluated on: proposal terms, demonstrated benefit to WSU, design concepts, financial stability, and proposed use. Interested tenants will be required to construct adjacent and adequate surface parking that may not be included in the leased ground. Rental rate shall be based on fair market value and negotiable based on term of lease, purpose/ use of building improvement, and benefit to the university. The university is interested in proposals from any individual, organization or entity, for the development of a building or buildings to provide rental space available for occupants who are committed to advancing the university's mission and vision as an education, cultural, and economic driver for Kansas and the greater public good, and aligning with the university's research and applied learning goals. The university will consider serious offers and inquiries with detailed proposal terms from any financially qualified individual, group, organization. If interested, please contact Property Manager Crystal Stegeman at [crystal.stegeman@wichita.edu](mailto:crystal.stegeman@wichita.edu) or Senior Vice President for Industry and Defense Programs, Dr. John Tomblin at [john.tomblin@wichita.edu](mailto:john.tomblin@wichita.edu). This publication is being published pursuant to K.S.A. 75-430a(d), to the extent applicable.

Crystal Stegeman  
University Property Manager  
Office of the Vice President for Administration and Finance  
Wichita State University

Doc. No. 052900

**State of Kansas**

## **Fort Hays State University Notice of Intent to Lease Real Property**

Public notice is hereby given that Fort Hays State University (FHSU) intends to lease approximately 320.5 acres of real property located on the University Farm, Western half (W2) of Section 08, Township 14S, Range 18W, Ellis County, Kansas, subject to any required state approvals. The lease will be from May 2025 through December 2026 for the purpose of promoting collaborative research involving FHSU faculty and students, Kansas State University, and the private industry. Interested tenants must be willing to be a good fit with the university's educational mission and identify anticipated benefits to the university, its students, and the FHSU community, and must agree to essential ground lease terms. Interested tenants will be evaluated on: proposal terms, demonstrated benefit to FHSU, design concepts, financial stability, and proposed use. Rental rate shall be based on fair market value and negotiable based on the term of lease, purpose/use of land improvement, and benefit to the university. If interested, please contact Purchasing Director Kathy Herrman at [kaherrman@fhsu.edu](mailto:kaherrman@fhsu.edu). This publication is being published pursuant to K.S.A. 75-430a(d), to the extent applicable.

Wesley D. Wintch  
Vice President for Administration and Finance  
Fort Hays State University

**Doc. No. 052992**

**State of Kansas**

## **Department of Administration Office of Facilities and Property Management**

### **Notice of Requested On-Call Architectural Services**

Notice is hereby given of the commencement of the selection process for on-call architectural services for Kansas State University. Services are required for restricted (small) projects with a project budget of \$1,500,000 or less. One or more firms will be selected. The contracts will be for three years with two one-year renewal options.

For more information, contact Rosanna Carvalho at [rcarvalho@ksu.edu](mailto:rcarvalho@ksu.edu). Firms interested in providing these services should be familiar with the requirements which can be found in Part B-Chapter 4 of the Building Design and Construction Manual at the website below.

To be considered, one (1) PDF file of the following should be provided: State of Kansas Professional Qualifications DCC Forms 051-054, inclusive, and information regarding similar projects. These forms may be found at <https://admin.ks.gov/offices/facilities-property-management/design-construction--compliance/forms-and-documents>. State of Kansas Professional Qualifications DCC Form 050 for each firm and consultant should be provided at the end of each proposal. Please include your firm name, agency abbreviation, and an abbreviated project name in the title of the PDF document. Proposals should be less than 5 Mb and follow the current State Building Advisory Commission guidelines which can be found in Part B – Chapter 2 of the Building Design and Construction Manual at <https://admin.ks.gov/offices/facilities-property-management/design-construction--compliance/building-design-and-construction-manual-bdcm>. Paper copies and flash drives containing copies of the proposals are not required.

Proposals should be sent to [professional.qualifications@ks.gov](mailto:professional.qualifications@ks.gov). Proposals received after the date and time noted below will not be forwarded to the State Building Advisory Commission for review. If you have questions about the proposal submissions, please contact Randy Riveland at [randy.riveland@ks.gov](mailto:randy.riveland@ks.gov) or call 785-296-0749. The PDF proposal submissions shall be delivered to the attention of State Building Advisory Commission by 2:00 p.m. on or before May 9, 2025.

The State of Kansas, as a matter of public policy, encourages anyone doing business with the State of Kansas to take steps to discourage human trafficking. If prospective bidders/vendors/contractors have any policies or participate in any initiatives that discourage human trafficking, then the prospective bidder/vendor/contractor is encouraged to submit same as part of their bid response.

Barbara Schilling  
Deputy Director-DCC  
Office of Facilities and Property Management  
Department of Administration

**Doc. No. 053076**

## State of Kansas

# Department of Health and Environment

## Notice Concerning Proposed Kansas Air Quality Construction Permit

Notice is hereby given that the Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) is soliciting comments regarding a proposed air quality construction permit. Koch & Company, Inc. has applied for an air quality construction permit in accordance with the provisions of K.A.R. 28-19-300. Emissions of volatile organic compounds (VOC), particulate matter (PM), particulate matter with less than or equal to 10 microns in aerodynamic diameter (PM<sub>10</sub>), particulate matter with less than or equal to 2.5 microns in aerodynamic diameter (PM<sub>2.5</sub>), carbon monoxide (CO), oxides of nitrogen (NO<sub>x</sub>), oxides of sulfur (SO<sub>x</sub>), and hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) were evaluated during the permit review process.

Koch & Company, Inc., 1809 North St., Seneca, KS 66538, owns and operates a wood kitchen cabinet manufacturing facility located at 880 US-36 Hwy., Seneca, Nemaha County, KS 66538, at which two (2) new spray paint booths and one (1) make-up air unit are to be constructed, and existing limitations on VOCs and HAPs emissions are to be revised.

A copy of the proposed permit, permit application, all supporting documentation, and all information relied upon during the permit application review process are available for public review from the date of publication during normal business hours at the KDHE, Bureau of Air (BOA), 1000 SW Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka, KS 66612-1366 and at the Northeast District Office, 800 W. 24th St., Lawrence, KS 66046. To obtain or review the proposed permit and supporting documentation, contact Alexandra Mohn at the central office of KDHE at 785-291-3683, or Byron Dotson at the Northeast District Office at 785-842-4600. The standard departmental cost will be assessed for any copies requested. The proposed permit, accompanied with supporting information, is available, free of charge, at the KDHE BOA Public Notice website at <https://www.kdhe.ks.gov/413/Public-Notices>.

Please direct written comments or questions regarding the proposed permit to Alexandra Mohn, KDHE, BOA, 1000 SW Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka, KS 66612-1366. In order to be considered in formulating a final permit decision, written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. Monday, May 26, 2025.

A person may request a public hearing be held on the proposed permit. The request for a public hearing shall be in writing and set forth the basis for the request. The written request must be submitted to Alexandra Mohn, KDHE, BOA, 1000 SW Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka, KS 66612-1366, no later than 12:00 p.m. Monday, May 26, 2025, in order for the Secretary of Health and Environment to consider the request.

The preceding notice refers to the air permit for Koch & Company, Inc. located at 880 US-36 Hwy., Seneca, Nemaha County, KS 66538. If you want more information or you have other questions, please contact the KDHE Non-Discrimination coordinator and call 785-296-5156 or send an email to: [KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov](mailto:KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov). [El aviso anterior se refiere al permiso de aire para Koch & Company, Inc. ubicado en 880 US-36 Hwy., Seneca, Nemaha County, KS 66538. Si desea obtener más información en español o tiene otras preguntas, por favor, comuníquese con el Coordinador de No Discriminación de KDHE y llame al 785-296-5156 o envíe un correo electrónico a: [KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov](mailto:KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov).]

Janet Stanek  
Secretary

Department of Health and Environment

## State of Kansas

# Department of Health and Environment

## Notice of Proposed Kansas Air Quality Construction Permit

Notice is hereby given that the Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) is soliciting comments regarding a proposed air quality construction permit. WindRiver Grain, LLC has applied for an air quality construction permit in accordance with the provisions of K.A.R. 28-19-300. Emissions of particulate matter (PM), particulate matter with less than or equal to 10 microns in aerodynamic diameter (PM<sub>10</sub>), particulate matter with less than or equal to 2.5 microns in aerodynamic diameter (PM<sub>2.5</sub>) were evaluated during the permit review process.

WindRiver Grain, LLC, 2810 E. US-50 Hwy., Garden City, KS 67846, owns and operates a terminal grain elevator facility located at 2810 E. US-50 Hwy., Garden City, Finney County, KS 67846, at which one (1) railcar receiving pit or unloading station with associated equipment is to be installed.

A copy of the proposed permit, permit application, all supporting documentation, and all information relied upon during the permit application review process are available for public review from the date of publication during normal business hours at the KDHE, Bureau of Air (BOA), 1000 SW Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka, KS 66612-1366 and at the Southwest District Office, 302 W. McArtor Rd., Dodge City, KS 67801-6098. To obtain or review the proposed permit and supporting documentation, contact Kayla Morris at the central office of KDHE at 785-296-1581, or Ethel Evans at the Southwest District Office at 620-356-1075. The standard departmental cost will be assessed for any copies requested. The proposed permit, accompanied with supporting information, is available, free of charge, at the KDHE BOA Public Notice website at <https://www.kdhe.ks.gov/413/Public-Notices>.

Please direct written comments or questions regarding the proposed permit to Kayla Morris, KDHE, BOA, 1000 SW Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka, KS 66612-1366. In order to be considered in formulating a final permit decision, written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. Monday, May 26, 2025.

A person may request a public hearing be held on the proposed permit. The request for a public hearing shall be in writing and set forth the basis for the request. The written request must be submitted to Kayla Morris, KDHE, BOA, 1000 SW Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka, KS 66612-1366, no later than 12:00 p.m. Monday, May 26, 2025, in order for the Secretary of Health and Environment to consider the request.

The preceding notice refers to the air permit for WindRiver Grain, LLC located at 2810 E. US-50 Hwy., Garden City, Finney County, KS 67846. If you want more information or you have other questions, please contact the KDHE Non-Discrimination coordinator and call 785-296-5156 or send an email to: [KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov](mailto:KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov). [El aviso anterior se refiere al permiso de aire para WindRiver Grain, LLC ubicado en 2810 E. US-50 Hwy., Garden City, Finney County, KS 67846. Si desea obtener más información en español o tiene otras preguntas, por favor, comuníquese con el Coordinador de No Discriminación de KDHE y llame al 785-296-5156 o envíe un correo electrónico a: [KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov](mailto:KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov).]

Janet Stanek  
Secretary

Department of Health and Environment

Doc. No. 053073

## Estado de Kansas

### Departamento de Salud y Medioambiente

#### Aviso sobre la propuesta de Permiso de construcción con potencial impacto en la calidad del aire

Por medio del presente aviso, se notifica que el Departamento de Salud y Medioambiente de Kansas (KDHE, por sus siglas en inglés) solicita comentarios con respecto a una propuesta de un permiso de construcción que afecta la calidad del aire. WindRiver Grain, LLC ha solicitado un permiso de construcción con potencial impacto en la calidad del aire conforme a las disposiciones de K.A.R. 28-19-300. Durante el proceso de revisión del permiso se evaluaron las emisiones de material particulado (PM), material particulado con un diámetro aerodinámico menor o igual a<sub>10</sub>micrones (PM<sub>10</sub>), material particulado con un diámetro aerodinámico menor o igual a<sub>2.5</sub>micrones (PM<sub>2.5</sub>).

WindRiver Grain, LLC, con domicilio en 2810 E. US-50 Hwy., Garden City, KS 67846, posee y opera una instalación terminal elevadora de granos ubicada en 2810 E. US-50 Hwy., Garden City, Finney County, KS 67846, en la que se instalará un (1) foso de recepción de vagones o una estación de descarga con el equipo correspondiente.

El público podrá consultar una copia del permiso propuesto, de la solicitud de permiso, de toda la documentación de respaldo y de toda la información utilizada durante el proceso de revisión de la solicitud de permiso a partir de la fecha de su publicación durante el horario de atención al público en el KDHE, Oficina de Calidad del Aire (Bureau of Air, BOA) 1000 SW Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka, KS 66612-1366, y en la Oficina del Distrito Suroeste, 302 W. McArtor Rd., Dodge City, KS 67801-6098. Para obtener o revisar el permiso propuesto y la documentación de respaldo, comuníquese con KaylaMorris, 785-296-1581, en la oficina central del KDHE, o con Ethel Evans, 620-356-1075, en la Oficina del Distrito Suroeste. Se aplicará el costo departamental estándar para cualquier copia solicitada. La propuesta de permiso, junto con la información de respaldo, está disponible, de forma gratuita, en el sitio web de notificaciones públicas de KDHE BOA en <https://www.kdhe.ks.gov/413/Public-Notices>.

Dirija sus comentarios o preguntas por escrito sobre el permiso propuesto a Kayla Morris, KDHE, BOA, 1000 SW Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka, KS 66612-1366. A fin de que se tengan en cuenta para la formulación de una decisión final sobre el permiso, los comentarios se deben presentar por escrito a más tardar al mediodía del Monday, May 26, 2025.

Una persona puede solicitar que se celebre una audiencia pública en relación con el permiso propuesto. La solicitud de audiencia pública deberá hacerse por escrito y expresar el fundamento de la solicitud. La solicitud por escrito debe presentarse a Kayla Morris, KDHE, BOA, 1000 SW Jackson, Suite 310, Topeka, KS 66612-1366, a más tardar al mediodía del Monday, May 26, 2025 para que la Secretaria de Salud y Medio Ambiente considere la solicitud.

The preceding notice refers to the air permit for WindRiver Grain, LLC located at 2810 E. US-50 Hwy., Garden City, Finney County, KS 67846. If you want more information or you have other questions, please contact the KDHE Non-Discrimination coordinator and call 785-296-5156 or send an email to: [KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov](mailto:KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov). [El aviso anterior se refiere al permiso de aire para WindRiver Grain, LLC ubicado en 2810 E. US-50 Hwy., Garden City, Finney County, KS 67846. Si desea obtener más información en español o tiene otras preguntas, por favor, comuníquese con el Coordinador de No Discriminación de KDHE y llame al 785-296-5156 o envíe un correo electrónico a: [KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov](mailto:KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov).]

Janet Stanek  
Secretaria  
Departamento de Salud y Medioambiente

State of Kansas

## Department of Health and Environment

### Notice of Proposed Kansas/Federal Water Pollution Control Permits and Applications

In accordance with Kansas Administrative Regulations 28-16-57a through 63, 28-18-1 through 17, 28-18a-1 through 31 and 33, 28-16-150 through 154, 28-46-7, and the authority vested with the state by the administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, various draft water pollution control documents (permits, notices to revoke and reissue, notices to terminate) have been prepared and/or permit applications have been received for discharges to waters of the United States and the state of Kansas for the class of discharges described below.

The proposed actions concerning the draft documents are based on staff review, applying the appropriate standards, regulations, and effluent limitations of the state of Kansas and the Environmental Protection Agency. The final action will result in a Federal National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Authorization and/or a Kansas Water Pollution Control permit being issued, subject to certain conditions, revocation, and reissuance of the designated permit or termination of the designated permit.

Las acciones propuestas con respecto a los documentos preliminares se basan en la revisión del personal, aplicando los estándares, regulaciones y limitaciones de efluentes apropiados del estado de Kansas y de la Agencia de Protección Ambiental de Estados Unidos. La acción final resultará en la emisión de una Autorización Federal del Sistema Nacional de Eliminación de Descargas de Contaminantes y un permiso de Control de Contaminación del Agua de Kansas, sujeto a ciertas condiciones, revocación y reemisión del permiso designado o terminación del permiso designado. Si desea obtener más información en español o tiene otras preguntas, por favor, comuníquese con el Coordinador de No Discriminación al 785-296-5156 o en: [KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov](mailto:KDHE.NonDiscrimination@ks.gov).

---

#### Public Notice No. KS-AG-25-116/121

#### Pending Permits for Confined Feeding Facilities

Name and Address of Applicant	Legal Description	Receiving Water
Allen Feed Yard Eric Washington 4415 W. Road 10 South Hoxie, KS 67740	NW/4 of Section 23 T08S, R29W Sheridan County	Solomon River Basin

Kansas Permit No. A-SOSD-B013

The proposed action is to issue a state permit for a former federally permitted facility. The facility will be permitted for 999 head (999 animal units) of cattle weighing more than 700 pounds. This will be a reduction in animal units from the previous permit. This facility has an approved Waste Management Plan on file with KDHE.

Name and Address of Applicant	Legal Description	Receiving Water
Finney County Feed Yard, LLC Jeff George 4170 N. Finney County Feeders Rd. Garden City, KS 67846	S/2 & NW/4 of Section 31 T23S, R31W and SE/4 of Section 36 T23S, R32W Finney County	Upper Arkansas River Basin

# Kansas Register

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

Kansas Permit No. A-UAFI-C002  
Federal Permit No. KS0037583

The proposed action is to modify and reissue an existing State/NPDES permit for an expanding facility for 50,000 head (50,000 animal units) of cattle weighing greater than 700 pounds. This permit is being modified to update the descriptions of the drainage areas as well as include 49 acres of additional manure storage area. There is no change in the permitted number of animal units from the previous permit. This facility has an approved Nutrient Management Plan on file with KDHE.

<b>Name and Address of Applicant</b>	<b>Legal Description</b>	<b>Receiving Water</b>
Heim Dairy Farm, LLC 30368 207th St. Easton, KS 66020	SE/4 of Section 27 T08S, R21E Leavenworth County	Missouri River Basin

Kansas Permit No. A-MOLV-M001

The proposed action is to modify and reissue an existing state permit for a facility for 150 head (210 animal units) of mature dairy cows, 40 head (40 animal units) of cattle weighing more than 700 pounds, and 50 head (25 animal units) of cattle weighing less than 700 pounds for a total of 275 animal units. This permit is being modified to add a northeast grass buffer area. There is no change in the permitted number of animal units from the previous permit. This facility has an approved Waste Management Plan on file with KDHE.

<b>Name and Address of Applicant</b>	<b>Legal Description</b>	<b>Receiving Water</b>
JR Feeders, Inc. James Dalinghaus 424 144th Rd. Baileyville, KS 66404	NW/4 of Section 03 T03S, R11E Nemaha County	Big Blue River Basin

Kansas Permit No. A-BBNM-C001  
Federal Permit No. KS0101397

The proposed action is to reissue an existing NPDES permit for an existing facility for 2,500 head (2,500 animal units) of cattle weighing 700 pounds or less, and 4 head (8 animal units) of horses for a total of 2,508 animal units. There will be no change in the operation or permitted number of animal units from the previous permit. This facility has an approved Nutrient Management Plan on file with KDHE.

<b>Name and Address of Applicant</b>	<b>Legal Description</b>	<b>Receiving Water</b>
Mendenhall & Sons J R&B Land, LLC Terry Mendenhall 5076 County Road N Gove, KS 67736	S/2 of Section 28 T13S, R28W Gove County	Smoky Hill River Basin

Kansas Permit No. A-SHGO-B013

The proposed action is to reissue an existing state permit for an existing facility for 900 head (450 animal units) of cattle weighing 700 pounds or less. There will be no change in the operation or permitted number of animal units from the previous permit. This facility has an approved Waste Management Plan on file with KDHE.

# Kansas Register

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

Name and Address of Applicant	Legal Description	Receiving Water
Overland Farms Cyrus Wedel 2218 Overland Rd. Galva, KS 67443	SW/4 of Section 35 T18S, R02W McPherson County	Smoky Hill River Basin

Kansas Permit No. A-SHMP-S006

The proposed action is to reissue an existing state permit for an existing facility for 2,000 head (200 animal units) of swine 55 pounds or less. There will be no change in the operation or permitted number of animal units from the previous permit. This facility has an approved Waste Management Plan on file with KDHE.

---

## Public Notice No. KS-AG-R-25-007

Per Kansas Statutes Annotated 65-171d, the following registration has been received for a proposed facility.

Name and Address of Registrant	Legal Description	County
Stallbaumer Cattle Feeders Curtis Stallbaumer 1963 D Rd. Baileyville, KS 66404	NE/4 of Section 33 T02S, R11E	Nemaha County

---

## Public Notice No. KS-Q-25-073/078

The requirements of the draft permit public noticed below are pursuant to the Kansas Surface Water Quality Standards, K.A.R. 28-16-28(b-g), and Federal Surface Water Criteria.

Name and Address of Applicant	Receiving Stream	Type of Discharge
Unified Government of Kansas City/ Wyandotte County 701 N. 7th St. Kansas City, KS 66101	Missouri River	Treated Domestic

Permit No. M-MO25-IO01  
Federal Permit No. KS0038563

Legal Description: NW<sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub>, Section 11, Township 11S, Range 25E, Wyandotte County

Location: [39.11220](#), [-94.61044](#)

The proposed action consists of reissuance of a Kansas/NPDES Water Pollution Control permit for an existing facility. The existing facility is a mechanical wastewater treatment plant consisting of: Bar screen, grit chambers, primary sedimentation, pure oxygen CMAS secondary treatment, sludge storage tanks, gravity belt thickener, centrifuge, final clarifiers, and UV disinfection. The facility receives domestic wastewater from residential and commercial areas and industrial wastewater from local manufacturers. This permit contains limits for Biochemical Oxygen Demand, Total Suspended Solids, pH, E. coil, and Acute Whole Effluent Toxicity. The permit contains monitoring for Ammonia, Total Phosphorus, Nitrates + Nitrites, Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen, and Total Nitrogen. The permittee is under Partial Consent Decree 13-2141-EFM to address unauthorized overflows of untreated raw sewage and to reduce pollution levels in urban stormwater.

# Kansas Register

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

<b>Name and Address of Applicant</b>	<b>Receiving Stream</b>	<b>Type of Discharge</b>
Johnson County Wastewater 11811 S. Sunset Dr., Suite 2500 Olathe, KS 66064-7061	Kansas River	Treated Domestic

Permit No. M-KS68-0004  
Federal Permit No. KS0088269

Legal Description: NE¼, Section 2 and NW¼, Section 1, Township 12S, Range 23E, Johnson County

Location: [39.04007](#), [-94.81550](#)

The proposed action consists of reissuance of a Kansas/NPDES Water Pollution Control permit for an existing facility. The existing facility is a mechanical wastewater treatment plant. The permit requires the facility to maximize the flow through the mechanical plant up to its design capacity while diverting influent flow to the lagoons as necessary to maintain biological activity in the lagoon treatment system to achieve effluent permit requirements. Additionally, the system includes a 5.3 MG off-site storage facility. The facility receives domestic wastewater from residential and commercial areas and industrial wastewater from local manufacturers. This permit contains limits for Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand, pH, Ammonia, E. coli, and Chronic Whole Effluent Toxicity. The permit contains monitoring for Total Suspended Solids, Total Phosphorus, Nitrates + Nitrites, Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen, and Total Nitrogen. In September 2019, Johnson County Wastewater (JCW) developed the Johnson County Wastewater Integrated Management Plan – Phase 1, which subsequently was updated in October 2024 as the Johnson County Wastewater Integrated Plan 2024 Update (Phase 2). Phase 1 and 2 of the IP have been incorporated into a consent order Case No. 19-E-005 BOW.

<b>Name and Address of Applicant</b>	<b>Receiving Stream</b>	<b>Type of Discharge</b>
Belleville, City of 1819 L St. PO Box 280 Belleville, KS 66935	Salt Creek via Unnamed Tributary	Treated Domestic

Permit No. M-LR03-0001  
Federal Permit No. KS0027529

Legal Description: NE¼, SE¼, NE¼, Section 2, Township 3S, Range 3W, Republic County

Location: [39.082232](#), [-97.61521](#)

The proposed action consists of reissuance of a Kansas/NPDES Water Pollution Control permit for an existing facility. The existing facility is a mechanical wastewater treatment plant consisting of: headworks, common wall extended aeration, aerobic sludge digestion, UV disinfection, belt filter press, and irrigation with treated effluent. The facility receives domestic wastewater from residential and commercial areas and industrial wastewater from local manufacturers. This permit contains limits for Biochemical Oxygen Demand, Total Suspended Solids, pH, Ammonia, E. coli, Total Phosphorus, and Total Nitrogen. The permit contains monitoring for Total Phosphorus, Nitrates + Nitrites, Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen, Total Nitrogen, Chloride, and Arsenic.

<b>Name and Address of Applicant</b>	<b>Receiving Stream</b>	<b>Type of Discharge</b>
Waste Corporation of Kansas PO Box 7 Arcadia, KS 66711	Marais des Cygnes River via Cox Creek via Unnamed Tributary	Process Wastewater

# Kansas Register

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

Permit No. I-MC03-PO05  
Federal Permit No. KS0100480

Legal Description: E½, SW¼, SE¼ of Section 2, Township 28S, Range 25E, Crawford County

Location: [37.632477](#), [-94.636805](#)

This action consists of reissuance of an existing NPDES/ Kansas water pollution control permit. The facility is engaged in mining of clay used to construct the liner of the Oak Grove Municipal Solid Waste Landfill. Stormwater runoff around the clay pits is discharged from Outfall 004, after being treated by an on-site settling pond. The Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) landfill area has an Industrial Stormwater Permit issued by KDHE's Bureau of Water (Industrial Stormwater permit: G-MC03-OO01) and has a solid waste permit issued by KDHE's Bureau of Waste Management. This permit contains limits for Biochemical Oxygen Demand, Total Suspended Solids, Ammonia, and E. coli. The permit contains monitoring for pH, and Total Phosphorus. This permit contains generic language to protect water quality.

<b>Name and Address of Applicant</b>	<b>Receiving Stream</b>	<b>Type of Discharge</b>
City of Holton 430 Pennsylvania Ave. Holton, KS 66436		Process Wastewater

Permit No. I-KS23-PO04  
Federal Permit No. KS0101532

Legal Description: NW¼, Section3, Township 7S, Range 15E, Jackson County

Location: [39.473073](#), [-95.731497](#)

The proposed action consists of reissuance of a Kansas/NPDES Water Pollution Control permit for the discharge of wastewater from the water treatment plant. This is a public water supply treatment plant. The water treatment plant is connected to two sources of water. The original source for the plant is Prairie Lake, located approximately 2 miles northeast of the plant. The plant is also connected to two ground water wells, located a little over 5 miles northeast of the plant. This permit contains limits for Total Residual Chlorine, Total Suspended Solids, and pH. The permit contains monitoring for Flow, Total Nitrogen, and Total Phosphorus.

<b>Name and Address of Applicant</b>	<b>Receiving Stream</b>	<b>Type of Discharge</b>
Public Wholesale Water Supply District No. 20 1989 Quivira Rd Sedan, KS 67361	Roadside Ditch via North Caney Creek	Process Wastewater

Permit No. I-VE33-PO04  
Federal Permit No. KS0097578

Legal Description: NE¼, Section 34, Township 32S, Range 11E, Chautauqua County

Location: [37.22579](#), [-96.18424](#)

The proposed action consists of reissuance of a Kansas/NPDES Water Pollution Control permit for the discharge of wastewater from PWWS # 20. The two cells represent a surface area of 5,408 square feet each, with total design flow of 0.011 MGD. Discharge is to a receiving ditch. In addition, the permittee operates a single cell non-overflowing domestic wastewater lagoon. This is a public water treatment plant. This permit contains limits for Total Suspended Solids, and pH. The permit contains monitoring for Total Residual Chlorine.

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

Persons wishing to comment on or object to the draft documents and/or permit applications must submit their comments in writing to the Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) if they wish to have the comments or objections considered in the decision-making process. All written comments regarding the draft documents, application or registration notices received on or before May 24, 2025, will be considered in the formulation of the final determination regarding this public notice. Please refer to the appropriate Kansas document number (KS-AG-25-116/121, KS-AG-R-25-007, KS-Q-25-073/078) and name of the applicant/permittee when preparing comments.

All comments received will be responded to at the time the Secretary of Health and Environment issues a determination regarding final agency action on each draft document/application. If response to any draft document/application indicates significant public interest, a public hearing may be held in conformance with K.A.R. 28-16-61 (28-46-21 for UIC). A request for public hearing must be submitted in writing and shall state the nature of the issues proposed to be raised during the hearing.

Comments or objections for agricultural related draft documents, permit applications, registrations or actions should be submitted to the attention of Casey Guccione, Livestock Waste Management Section at the KDHE, Bureau of Environmental Field Services (BEFS), 1000 SW Jackson, Suite 430, Topeka, KS 66612. Comments or objections for all other proposed permits or actions should be sent to Andrew Bowman at the KDHE, Bureau of Water, 1000 SW Jackson St., Suite 420, Topeka, KS 66612.

All draft documents/applications and the supporting information including any comments received are on file and may be inspected at the offices of the KDHE. For agricultural related draft documents or applications an appointment can be scheduled, or copies requested by contacting Jada Martin at 1000 SW Jackson St., Suite 430, Topeka, KS 66612, telephone 785-296-0076 or email at [kdhe.feedlots@ks.gov](mailto:kdhe.feedlots@ks.gov). Las preguntas o comentarios por escrito deben dirigirse a Erich Glave, Director, Bureau of Environmental Field Services en KDHE: 1000 SW Jackson St., Suite 430, Topeka, KS 66612-1367; por correo electrónico: [kdhe.feedlots@ks.gov](mailto:kdhe.feedlots@ks.gov); por teléfono: 785-296-6432. For all other proposed permits or actions an appointment can be scheduled, or copies requested by contacting Jamie Packard, Bureau of Water, 1000 SW Jackson St., Suite 420, Topeka, KS 66612, telephone 785-296-4148 or email at [Jamie.Packard@ks.gov](mailto:Jamie.Packard@ks.gov). These documents are available upon request at the copying cost assessed by KDHE. Application information and components of plans and specifications for all new and expanding swine facilities are available at <http://www.kdhe.ks.gov/livestock>. Division of Environment offices are open from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.

Janet Stanek  
Secretary  
Department of Health and Environment

Doc. No. 053068

State of Kansas

## Department of Health and Environment Division of Health Care Finance

### Public Notice

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment, Division of Health Care Finance (KDHE-DHCF) is amending the Kansas Medicaid State Plan to add the following physician services and reimbursement rates:

1. Additional pelvic examination services for females; and
2. Visit complexity services.

The proposed effective date for the State Plan Amendment (SPA) is April 1, 2025. (In the original public notice published in the March 13, 2025 Kansas Register, KDHE-DHCF incorrectly identified the year as 2024. In full transparency, KDHE-DHCF is publishing this notice to correct this error. All other information on the original public notice remains the same.)

#### Item 1

##### Fee-For-Service Only

##### Estimated Federal Financial Participation

FFY 2025

\$523

FFY 2026

\$1,025

#### Item 2

##### Fee-For-Service Only

##### Estimated Federal Financial Participation

FFY 2025

\$7,657

FFY 2026

\$15,017

To request a copy of the proposed SPA, to submit a comment, or to review comments, please contact William C. Stelzner by email at [william.stelzner@ks.gov](mailto:william.stelzner@ks.gov), or by mail at:

William C. Stelzner  
Kansas Department of Health and Environment  
Division of Health Care Finance  
900 SW Jackson, Room 900N  
Topeka, KS 66612

The last day for public comment is April 14, 2025.

Draft copies of the proposed SPA may also be found at a Local Health Department (LHD).

Christine Osterlund  
Medicaid Director  
Deputy Secretary of Agency Integration and Medicaid  
Division of Health Care Finance  
Department of Health and Environment

State of Kansas

## Department of Health and Environment Division of Health Care Finance

### Public Notice

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment, Division of Health Care Finance (KDHE-DHCF) is amending the Kansas Medicaid State Plan. Kansas Medicaid is the primary payor for exempt enteral formula for normal daily nutrition for members, age 0 through age 4, with an Inherited Error of Metabolism (IEM), specified gastrointestinal disorders or specified malabsorption disorders. The Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children (WIC) is the secondary payor.

The proposed effective date for the State Plan Amendment (SPA) is May 1, 2025.

#### Fee-For-Service Only

FFY 2025

FFY 2026

#### Estimated Federal Financial Participation

\$0

\$0

To request a copy of the proposed SPA, to submit a comment, or to review comments, please contact William C. Stelzner by email at [william.stelzner@ks.gov](mailto:william.stelzner@ks.gov), or by mail at:

William C. Stelzner  
Kansas Department of Health and Environment  
Division of Health Care Finance  
900 SW Jackson, Room 900N  
Topeka, KS 66612

The last day for public comment is May 26, 2025.

Christine Osterlund  
Medicaid Director  
Deputy Secretary of Agency Integration and Medicaid  
Division of Health Care Finance  
Department of Health and Environment

Doc. No. 053082

State of Kansas

## Department of Administration Office of Procurement and Contracts

### Notice to Bidders

Sealed bids for items listed will be received by the Office of Procurement and Contracts until 2:00 p.m. on the date indicated. For more information, call 785-296-2376.

All bids are to be submitted via email only to [procurement@ks.gov](mailto:procurement@ks.gov). For more information, please visit [https://supplier.sok.ks.gov/psc/sokfsprdsup/SUPPLIER/ERP/c/SCP\\_PUBLIC\\_MENU\\_FL.SCP\\_PUB\\_BID\\_CMP\\_FL.GBL](https://supplier.sok.ks.gov/psc/sokfsprdsup/SUPPLIER/ERP/c/SCP_PUBLIC_MENU_FL.SCP_PUB_BID_CMP_FL.GBL).

05/22/2025	EVT0010261	Window Shades and Blinds – OFPM
05/22/2025	EVT0010274	Website Design – KBI
05/22/2025	EVT0010282	Court Reporting Services – Office of Disciplinary Administrator
05/28/2025	EVT0010278	Trailer Mounted Mud Mixer and Pump – KDOT
05/28/2025	EVT0010281	Pest Control at State Park – KDWP

The above referenced bid documents can be downloaded at the following website:

[https://supplier.sok.ks.gov/psc/sokfsprdsup/SUPPLIER/ERP/c/SCP\\_PUBLIC\\_MENU\\_FL.SCP\\_PUB\\_BID\\_CMP\\_FL.GBL](https://supplier.sok.ks.gov/psc/sokfsprdsup/SUPPLIER/ERP/c/SCP_PUBLIC_MENU_FL.SCP_PUB_BID_CMP_FL.GBL)

Additional files may be located at the following website (please monitor this website on a regular basis for any changes/addenda):

<https://admin.ks.gov/offices/procurement-contracts/bidding--contracts/additional-bid-opportunities>

05/08/2025	A-015241	Infrastructure Demolition; Brennan Hall I, II and III – Wichita State University
------------	----------	--

Information regarding prequalification, projects, and bid documents can be obtained at 785-296-8899 or <http://admin.ks.gov/offices/ofpm/dcc>.

Todd Herman  
Director  
Office of Procurement and Contracts  
Department of Administration

## State of Kansas

### Board of Regents Universities

#### Notice to Bidders

The universities of the Kansas Board of Regents encourage interested vendors to visit the various universities' purchasing offices' websites for a listing of all transactions, including construction projects, for which the universities' purchasing offices, or one of the consortia commonly utilized by the universities, are seeking information, competitive bids, or proposals. The referenced construction projects may include project delivery construction procurement act projects pursuant to K.S.A. 76-7,125 et seq.

**Emporia State University** – Bid postings: <https://www.emporia.edu/about-emporia-state-university/business-office/purchasing>. Additional contact info: phone: 620-341-5137, email: [purchaseorders@emporia.edu](mailto:purchaseorders@emporia.edu). Mailing address: Emporia State University Purchasing, Campus Box 4021, 1 Kellogg Cir., Emporia, KS 66801.

**Fort Hays State University** – Electronic bid postings: <http://www.fhsu.edu/purchasing/bids>. Additional contact info: phone: 785- 628-4251, email: [purchasing@fhsu.edu](mailto:purchasing@fhsu.edu). Mailing address: Fort Hays State University Purchasing Office, 601 Park St., Sheridan Hall 318, Hays, KS 67601.

**Kansas State University** – Bid postings: <https://bidportal.ksu.edu>. Effective August 1, 2023, all bids, quotes, or proposals must be submitted via the Kansas State University Bid Portal at <https://bidportal.ksu.edu>. Division of Financial Services/Purchasing, 2323 Anderson Ave., Kansas State University, Manhattan, KS 66506. Additional contact information, phone: 785-532- 6214, email: [kspurch@k-state.edu](mailto:kspurch@k-state.edu).

**Pittsburg State University** – Bid postings: <https://www.pittstate.edu/office/purchasing>. Additional contact info: phone: 620-235-4167, email: [purch@pittstate.edu](mailto:purch@pittstate.edu). Mailing address: Pittsburg State University, Purchasing Office, 1701 S. Broadway, Pittsburg, KS 66762.

**University of Kansas** – Electronic bid postings: <http://www.procurement.ku.edu/>. The University of Kansas exclusively uses the online eBid tool and will no longer accept paper responses unless otherwise specified in a solicitation. Additional contact information, email: [purchasing@ku.edu](mailto:purchasing@ku.edu). Mailing address: University of Kansas, Procurement Department, 1246 W. Campus Road Room 20, Lawrence, KS 66045.

**University of Kansas Medical Center** – Electronic bid postings: <https://www.kumc.edu/finance/supply-chain/bid-opportunities.html>. Additional contact information, phone: 913-588-1117, email: [hunkemoore@kumc.edu](mailto:hunkemoore@kumc.edu). The University of Kansas Medical Center accepts only electronic bids.

**Wichita State University** – Bid postings: [https://www.wichita.edu/services/purchasing/Bid\\_Documents/BidDocuments.php](https://www.wichita.edu/services/purchasing/Bid_Documents/BidDocuments.php). Additional contact information, phone: 316-978-3080, fax: 316-978-3738, email: [purchasing.office@wichita.edu](mailto:purchasing.office@wichita.edu). Mailing address: Wichita State University, Office of Purchasing, 1845 Fairmount Ave., Campus Box 38, Wichita, KS 67260-0038.

Jim Hughes  
Director of Purchasing  
Pittsburg State University

State of Kansas

## Department of Agriculture Division of Conservation

### Notice of Authorization to Proceed with On-Call Engineering Services

Wildhorse Riverworks, Inc. (WRI) has been identified as a qualified entity to provide specific on-call engineering services to the Kansas Department of Agriculture, Division of Conservation. Pursuant to its current “Agreement for On-Call Engineering Services” with Wildhorse Riverworks, Inc. (WRI) the Kansas Department of Agriculture, Division of Conservation issued an authorization to proceed on Contract No. SbPP-TSP-2025-10 for Streambank Stabilization design services to be conducted on the BBR37, LBR68.35 and LBR69 streambank protection sites in the Tuttle Creek watershed in Marshall and Washington Counties, Kansas. The authorization to proceed was issued on April 4, 2025, for a total approved cost of \$92,800.

Additional information about the Division of Conservation’s Streambank Protection Program is available from the program manager by phone at 785-564-6624, or electronically at [Kristin.A.Kloft@ks.gov](mailto:Kristin.A.Kloft@ks.gov).

Steve Frost  
Executive Director  
Division of Conservation  
Department of Agriculture

Doc. No. 053078

State of Kansas

## Department of Agriculture Division of Conservation

### Notice of Authorization to Proceed with On-Call Engineering Services

Water Resources Solutions (WRS) has been identified as a qualified entity to provide specific on-call engineering services to the Kansas Department of Agriculture, Division of Conservation. Pursuant to its current "Agreement for On-Call Engineering Services" with The Watershed Institute, Inc. the Kansas Department of Agriculture, Division of Conservation issued an authorization to proceed on Contract No. SbPP-TSP-2025-12 for streambank stabilization design services to be conducted on the LBR58 streambank protection site in the Tuttle Creek watershed in Washington County, Kansas. The authorization to proceed was issued on April 3, 2025, for a total approved cost of \$47,727.

Additional information about the Division of Conservation's Streambank Protection Program is available from the program manager by phone at 785-564-6624, or electronically at [Kristin.A.Kloft@ks.gov](mailto:Kristin.A.Kloft@ks.gov).

Steve Frost  
Executive Director  
Division of Conservation  
Department of Agriculture

Doc. No. 053079

State of Kansas

## Department of Agriculture Division of Conservation

### Notice of Authorization to Proceed with On-Call Engineering Services

The JEO Consulting Group, Inc. (JEO) has been identified as a qualified entity to provide specific on-call engineering services to the Kansas Department of Agriculture, Division of Conservation. Pursuant to its current "Agreement for On-Call Engineering Services" with The Watershed Institute, Inc. the Kansas Department of Agriculture, Division of Conservation issued an authorization to proceed on Contract No. SbPP-TSP-2025-11 for Streambank Stabilization design services to be conducted on the BBR32 streambank protection site in the Tuttle Creek watershed in Marshall County, Kansas. The authorization to proceed was issued on April 4, 2025, for a total approved cost of \$53,900.

Additional information about the Division of Conservation's Streambank Protection Program is available from the program manager by phone at 785-564-6624, or electronically at [Kristin.A.Kloft@ks.gov](mailto:Kristin.A.Kloft@ks.gov).

Steve Frost  
Executive Director  
Division of Conservation  
Department of Agriculture

Doc. No. 053080

**State of Kansas**

## **Department of Agriculture Division of Conservation**

### **Notice to Contractors**

Sealed bids for the primary spillway replacement at Floodwater Retarding Dam (FRD) 1-6 in Pawnee County, Kansas, will be received until 7:00 p.m. May 19, 2025, by the Pawnee Watershed Joint District No. 81, PO Box 367, 20476 SE US-283 Hwy., Jetmore, KS 67854, at which time and place bids will be publicly opened and read aloud.

#### **Description of Work**

Primary spillway replacement for FRD 1-6 includes excavating to remove existing primary spillway and installing new primary spillway consisting of 48-inch diameter precast concrete manhole and 20-inch diameter PVC pipe. Estimated quantities include 4,200 cubic yards of excavation, 4,300 cubic yards of earthfill, installation of 160 feet of 20-inch AWWA C900 PVC pipe, 45 cubic yards of flowable fill, and appurtenant items.

All work shall be completed in conformance with the project construction drawings, construction specifications and Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan.

#### **Work Timing**

The Work is to commence within twenty (20) calendar days after the Notice to Proceed is issued. Notice to Proceed is anticipated to be issued on July 1, 2025. Completion of the work is desired within 120 days after such notice.

A copy of the Invitation to Bid, plans, and specifications can be reviewed and/or obtained from Pawnee Watershed Joint District No. 81, PO Box 367, 20476 SE US-283, Jetmore, KS 67854; phone 620-357-6420.

Site showings will be conducted by Pawnee Watershed Joint District No. 81 from 1:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. May 6, 2025, at the site.

ALL bids must be accompanied by a certified check, cashier's check, or a bid bond for not less than 5 percent (5%) of the total bid Price (including alternates), made payable to Pawnee Watershed Joint District No. 81.

Steve Frost  
Executive Director  
Division of Conservation  
Department of Agriculture

**Doc. No. 053069**

(Published in the Kansas Register April 24, 2025.)

## Long-Scott Creeks Watershed District No. 93

### Notice to Contractors

#### Project

Rehabilitation of Detention Dam Site 6-9 in Coffey County, Kansas, located five (5) miles south and two (2) miles west of Waverly, Kansas, for Long-Scott Creeks Watershed District No. 93.

#### General Scope of Work

Rehabilitation of dam with 990 tons of riprap for wave protection and 180 tons of riprap for outlet channel and 60 tons of riprap for fence barriers totaling 1,230 tons of riprap repair; 1,200 linear feet of existing fence removal; associated earthwork; seeding and mulching.

#### Site Showing

(Non-mandatory attendance) 10:30 a.m. (Central Time) Thursday, June 12, 2025, at 605 3rd St. Burlington, KS 66839.

#### Bid Opening

(Non-mandatory attendance) 10:30 a.m. (Central Time) Thursday, June 19, 2025, at 605 3rd St. Burlington, KS 66839.

Sealed bids will be received until 5:00 p.m. Wednesday, June 18, 2025, by Matt Miller, 1524 W. 217th, Osage City, KS 66523, or may be delivered at time of opening. Any bid received after the specified times will not be considered.

#### Bid Documents

Bid documents (constituting project manual and construction plans) may be obtained hard copy or electronically by contacting Matt Miller, 1524 W. 217th, Osage City, KS 66523, at 785-230-4354 or [mmiller1@eocene.com](mailto:mmiller1@eocene.com).

For any questions pertaining to the project listed above, please contact Matt Miller at 785-230-4354 or [mmiller1@eocene.com](mailto:mmiller1@eocene.com).

Matthew Miller  
Engineering Technician  
Eocene Environmental Group

Doc. No. 053075

## State of Kansas

# Department of Transportation

## Notice to Contractors

Electronic copies of the letting proposals and plans are available on the Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT) website at <https://kdotapp.ksdot.org/Proposal/Proposal.aspx>. The website will allow the contractor to request approval from KDOT to bid as a prime contractor and be included on the "Bid Holders List," or to be included on the "Non-Bid Holders List" as a subcontractor/supplier. KDOT's approval is required to bid as a prime contractor. To bid as a prime contractor, KDOT needs to be notified of the intent to bid no later than the close of business on the Monday preceding the scheduled letting date. Failure to obtain prior approval to bid as a prime contractor on any projects listed below will be reason to reject your bid. The Secretary reserves the right to reject bids that do not comply with all requirements for preparing a bidding proposal as specified in the 2015 edition of the Kansas Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for State Road and Bridge Construction.

KDOT will only accept electronic Internet proposals using the Bid Express website at <https://bidx.com/ks/main> until 1:00 p.m. (Central Time) on letting day. The KDOT bid letting will be conducted remotely by audio broadcast only at 3:00 p.m. (Central Time) on letting day. For the conference call information see <https://www.ksdot.org/bureaus/burconsmain/lettinginfo.asp>. KDOT has tested the process, but in the event of an unforeseen issue, KDOT will provide updates.

Each bidder shall certify that such person, firm, association, or corporation has not, either directly or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the submitted bid. This certification shall be in the form of a required contract provision provided by the state to each prospective bidder. Failure to complete the required contract provision and certify the completeness of the preceding statement when electronically signing the proposal will make the bid nonresponsive and not eligible for award consideration.

### Projects for the May 21, 2025 Letting

#### District One – Northeast

**Atchison:** 3 U-2497-01 – Bridge, in Atchison over Brewery Creek on Patriot Street located 0.1 miles west of US-73, bridge replacement, 0.1 miles. (Federal Funds)

**Johnson:** 69-46 KA-7676-01 – US-69, from 0.06 miles south of West 103rd Street north 2.55 miles, pavement marking, 2.6 miles. (Federal Funds)

**Johnson:** 435-46 KA-7677-01 – I-435, from 0.37 miles northwest of Lackman Road north 2 miles, pavement marking, 0.4 miles. (Federal Funds)

**Lyon:** 99-56 KA-7680-01 – K-99, from the Greenwood/Lyon County line north to the Emporia south city limits, milling and overlay, 15.5 miles. (State Funds)

**Riley:** 177-81 KA-7660-01 – K-177, from the Geary/Riley County line north to the K-177/K-18 junction, milling and overlay, 7.0 miles. (Federal Funds)

**Wabaunsee:** 4-99 KA-6763-01 – K-4, culvert #533 over South Bridge Mission Creek Drainage located 5.07 miles northeast of the K-99/K-4 east junction, culvert. (State Funds)

**Wyandotte:** 70-105 KA-7311-01 – Bridge #211 and #212, located 0.2 miles west of the I-435/I-70 junction, bridge paint. (State Funds)

**Wyandotte:** 70-105 KA-7310-01 – Bridge #250, located 1.07 miles east of US-69, bridge paint. (State Funds)

## District Two – North Central

**Chase:** 177-9 KA-5677-01 – K-177, culvert #514 over Fox Creek Drainage located 5.14 miles north of the K-177/US-50 junction, culvert. (Federal Funds)

**Geary:** 177-31 KA-7659-01 – K-177, from 1 mile south of the Geary/Riley county line north to the Geary/Riley county line, milling and overlay, 1.0 miles. (State Funds)

**Morris:** 64 C-5280-01 – Bridge, located over the West Fork Neosho River 2.2 miles south and 0.6 miles east of White City, bridge replacement, 0.1 miles. (Federal Funds)

**Statewide:** 106 KA-7257-01 – US-81, K-41, K-18 and K-106 in Ottawa, Dickinson, Cloud, Saline, and Lincoln counties, signing. (State Funds)

## District Three – Northwest

**Ellis:** 70-26 KA-7609-01 – I-70, bridge #024 carrying Toulon Avenue over I-70 located 4.35 miles east of the US-183 junction, bridge repair. (Federal Funds)

**Ellis:** 70-26 KA-7608-01 – I-70, bridge #006 carrying 240th Avenue/Hall Street over I-70 located 1.10 miles east of the US-183A junction, bridge repair. (Federal Funds)

**Ellis:** 183-26 KA-7615-01 – US-183, bridge #059 over the Saline River located 13.85 miles north of the I-70 junction, bridge. (State Funds)

**Graham:** 33 C-5290-01 – Bridge, located over Bow Creek 6.0 miles south and 1.3 miles east of Densmore, bridge replacement, 0.3 miles. (Federal Funds)

**Sherman:** 91 C-5294-01 – Bridge, located over Tributary to South Fork of Sappa Creek 1.4 miles north and 3.0 miles east of Edson, bridge replacement, 0.2 miles. (Federal Funds)

**Statewide:** 106 KA-7280-01 – US-83, US-36, K-383, K-123, and K-223 in Decatur, Rawlins, Sheridan, and Norton counties, signing. (State Funds)

## District Four – Southeast

**Allen:** 1 C-5293-01 – Bridge, located over Elm Creek 0.5 miles south and 3.2 miles west of Moran, bridge replacement, 0.1 miles. (Federal Funds)

**Crawford:** 69-19 KA-7230-01 – Signal improvements at US-69B1/Centennial Drive in Pittsburg, traffic signals. (State Funds)

**Statewide:** 106 KA-7667-01 – Various locations in Allen, Greenwood, Linn, Neosho, and Wilson counties, mudjacking. (State Funds)

## District Five – South Central

**Sedgwick:** 96-87 KA-7618-01 – K-96, bridge #280 carrying Tyler Road over K-96 located at the Tyler Road/K-96 junction, bridge. (State Funds)

**Sedgwick:** 54-87 KA-7675-01 – US-54, from the concrete west of South Meridian Avenue east to east edge

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

wearing surface of Washington Street bridge and all ramps, pavement marking, 3.0 miles. (Federal Funds)

**Statewide:** 106 KA-7288-01 – US-281, US-54/US-400, K-42, K-61 and US-50 in Pratt, Stafford, Reno, Kingman, Barber, and Kiowa counties, signing. (State Funds)

## District Six – Southwest

**Finney:** 83-28 KA-1008-04 – US-83, from 2.5 miles north of the Haskell/Finney County line north to the south edge wearing surface of bridge #015 over the Arkansas River, grading, bridge and surfacing, 12.7 miles. (Federal Funds)

**Grant:** 160-34 KA-5986-01 – US-160, geometric improvements in Ulysses from 0.05 miles west of South Comanche Street to South Stubbs Road, grading and surfacing, 0.5 miles. (Federal Funds)

Calvin Reed  
Secretary  
Department of Transportation

Doc. No. 053046

## State of Kansas

# Department of Transportation

## Notice of Intent to Conduct Environmental Assessment

Public notice is hereby given that the Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT), in cooperation with the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), will prepare an Environmental Assessment (EA) for a proposal to replace three aging bridge structures; Bridge 105-290, Bridge 105-027, and Bridge 105-289, that make up the Central Avenue Bridge over Interstate 70 (I-70) and the Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) in eastern Kansas City, Kansas, within Wyandotte County.

The project study area spans the Kansas River and is bound by Northrup and Ohio Avenues to the north, Ewing Street to the east, the Union Pacific Railroad Bridge near I-670 to the south, and S. 7th Street to the west, connecting with N. 6th Street Trafficway. The Central Avenue/I-70 interchange is included in this study area, along with the on- and off-ramps for I-670 and S. 3rd Street.

Within the EA, FHWA, and KDOT will evaluate a “No Action” alternative as well as modernization alternatives on current alignment and offset alignments for the Central Avenue Bridge over I-70/UPRR study area as the proposed action. Roadway and interchange configurations will be evaluated throughout the corridor. Alternatives for the Central Avenue River Bridge over the Kansas River are not included but the area surrounding it within the study area will be evaluated for potential impacts, and no action related to the Central Avenue Bridge over I-70/UPRR will preclude future decisions for the Central Avenue River Bridge.

The FHWA and KDOT plan to prepare an EA for the project. The EA will analyze the potential social, economic, and environmental impacts resulting from the proposed project. The following issues will be specifically analyzed as part of the EA: traffic noise, impacts to the aquatic ecosystem, effects to cultural resources; effects to threatened and endangered species; impacts to floodplain and levee; effects on the transportation system; potential for hazardous materials impacts; community impacts, and socioeconomics. This includes direct, indirect, and cumulative impacts. Other Federal approvals or permits that may be required; coordination with Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) to address potential airspace considerations to Charles B. Wheeler Downtown Airport, a Section 404 and/or Section 408 Permit from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), a floodplain development permit from the City of Kansas City, and Wyandotte County as well as water resource and floodplain permits from the Kansas Division of Water Resources.

Coordination meetings will be held as needed with affected/concerned local, state, tribal, and federal governmental entities. Public meetings will be held to gather input and share findings on the EA. The EA will be made available for public and agency review and comment prior to the final public meeting.

To ensure that the full range of issues related to the proposed action are addressed and all significant issues defined, comments and suggestions are invited from all interested parties. Comments or questions concerning the proposed action and the EA should be directed to FHWA or KDOT at the addresses provided below.

For further information, contact:

Federal Highway Administration, Kansas Division  
Richard Backlund, Division Administrator  
6111 SW 29th St., Suite 100,  
Topeka, KS 66614-4271  
785-273-2600  
[hdaks@dot.gov](mailto:hdaks@dot.gov)

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

Kansas Department of Transportation  
Steven Cross, P.E., Road Design Leader/Project Manager  
Dwight D. Eisenhower State Office Building  
700 SW Harrison St.,  
Topeka, KS 66603-3745  
785-221-6441  
[Steven.Cross@ks.gov](mailto:Steven.Cross@ks.gov)

Calvin Reed  
Secretary  
Department of Transportation

Doc. No. 053053

**State of Kansas**

## **Department of Transportation**

### **Request for Comments**

The Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT) requests comments on the amendment of the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) FY 25-28. The comprehensive list of project(s) being amended to the STIP may be viewed online at <https://www.ksdot.gov/about/publications-and-reports/state-transportation-improvement-program-stip>. The project list includes projects for counties, cities, and projects on the state highway system.

The amendment of the STIP requires a public comment period of 14 days. To make comment on this STIP amendment, contact KDOT's Division of Program and Project Management, 2nd Floor Tower, 700 SW Harrison, Topeka, KS 66603-3754; phone 785-296-3254.

This information is available in alternative accessible formats. To obtain an alternative format, contact the KDOT Office of Public Affairs at 785-296-3585 (Voice/Hearing Impaired-711).

The comment period regarding the STIP amendment for these projects will conclude May 8, 2025.

Calvin Reed  
Secretary  
Department of Transportation

**Doc. No. 053071**

(Published in the Kansas Register April 24, 2025.)

## Workforce Partnership

### Request for Comments

Local Workforce Investment Area III, Inc. d/b/a Workforce Partnership, the local workforce development board (LWDB) serving Johnson, Wyandotte, and Leavenworth counties in Kansas, has developed its strategic Local Area Plan under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act. This Plan is available for review and comment beginning April 25, 2025 to May 25, 2025, and may be found at <https://workforcepartnership.com/public-notices-2/>. Questions and comments should be addressed to [wib@workforcepartnership.com](mailto:wib@workforcepartnership.com) by no later than 5:00 p.m. on May 25, 2025.

Keely Schneider  
Executive Director  
Workforce Partnership

Doc. No. 053094

State of Kansas

## Department for Children and Families

### Request for Comments

The Kansas Department for Children and Families (DCF) will accept public comments on the State Fiscal 2026 Social Services Block Grant. A copy of the plan, paper or electronic, may be obtained by contacting Kim Holter by telephone at 785-368-8109, by email at [Kimberly.Holter@ks.gov](mailto:Kimberly.Holter@ks.gov), or under the Quick Links, Newsroom section of the DCF website at <http://www.dcf.ks.gov/Newsroom>, beginning April 14, 2025.

Comments must be submitted in writing and received by DCF by May 20, 2025.

Laura Howard  
Secretary

Department for Children and Families

Doc. No. 053064

State of Kansas

## Department for Children and Families

### Request for Proposals

The Kansas Department for Children and Families (DCF) announces the release of the Grant Request for Proposal (RFP) for the We Kan Drive program. Sealed bids will be accepted no later than 2:00 p.m. (Central Time) May 3, 2025. A complete copy of the RFP with details of important dates may be found at <http://www.dcf.ks.gov/Agency/Operations/Pages/OGC/Grant-RFP.aspx>, under "Grant Requests for Proposals (RFPs)." Additional files may be located at this website throughout the process, so please monitor on a regular basis for changes.

Laura Howard  
Secretary  
Department for Children and Families

Doc. No. 053063

## State of Kansas

# Office of the Governor

## State of Disaster Emergency Proclamation

By virtue of the authority vested in me by the Kansas Emergency Management Act, Chapter 48, Article 9, of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, to meet the inherent dangers of disasters to which the State and its citizens have been exposed, and upon advice of the State Adjutant General as the Director of the Division of Emergency Management, I hereby proclaim a State of Disaster Emergency as follows:

### **NATURE OF THE DISASTER**

Weather conditions are such that a high risk exists for wildland fires in the coming days. The forecast includes high winds and Red Flag Warnings due to ongoing drought, dry vegetation and low relative humidity. A cold front is forecast to bring severe thunderstorms and blizzard conditions later in the week. Delivery of commodities, propane, fuel, power restoration and life saving measures may be impacted.

### **DATE THAT DISASTER AFFECTED THE AREA**

March 14-19, 2025

### **AREA AFFECTED BY THE DISASTER**

Barton  
Chautauqua  
Edwards  
Elk  
Ellis  
Gove  
Graham  
Gray  
Hodgeman  
Jewell  
Lincoln  
Logan  
Ness  
Norton  
Osborne  
Pawnee  
Phillips  
Rice  
Rooks  
Russell  
Rush  
Sheridan  
Sherman  
Smith  
Stafford  
Trego  
Wallace  
Wilson  
Woodson

I hereby proclaim, direct and order the Adjutant General of the State of Kansas to activate the disaster response

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

and recovery portions of the Kansas Response Plan and to utilize all available resources of the state to cope with the disaster as necessary. The Adjutant General shall coordinate local and inter-jurisdictional disaster plans applicable to the political subdivisions of areas affected by this Proclamation.

Any or all of the powers conferred upon the Governor by the Kansas Emergency Management Act may be delegated to the Adjutant General as deemed appropriate during this period of proclaimed State of Disaster Emergency. This may be delegated by written orders, or oral orders subsequently reduced to writing with reference to this Proclamation.

I hereby suspend the provisions of any regulatory statute prescribing the procedures for conduct of state business, or the order or rules and regulations of any state agency which implements such statute, if strict compliance with the provisions of such statutes, order or rule and regulation would prevent, hinder, or delay in any way necessary action in coping with the disaster as set forth in KSA 48-925(c)(1).

This Proclamation shall be filed promptly with the Division of Emergency Management, the Office of the Secretary of State and each city clerk or county clerk, as appropriate, in the area to which this Proclamation applies. Further dissemination of this Proclamation shall occur by means calculated to bring its contents to the attention of the general public.

**PROCLAIMED** on the 13<sup>th</sup> day of March 2025, and **MEMORIALIZED** under the Great Seal of the State this 18<sup>th</sup> day of April 2025.

Laura Kelly  
Governor

Doc. No. 053088

State of Kansas

## Legislative Administrative Services

### Interim Committee Schedule

The Legislative Research Department gives notice that the following legislative committees plan to meet on the dates listed below based on current information and subject to change. Requests for accommodation to participate in committee meetings should be made at least two working days in advance of the meeting by contacting Legislative Administrative Services at 785-296-2391 or TTY 711, or email [legserv@las.ks.gov](mailto:legserv@las.ks.gov).

#### April 21 through May 9, 2025

Date	Room	Time	Committee	Agenda
Apr. 23	112-N	1:00 p.m.	House Select Committee on Government Oversight	No Agenda Available
Apr. 28	582-N	9:00 a.m.	Joint Committee on Administrative Rules and Regulations	No Agenda Available
May 7	112-N	9:00 a.m.	Education Funding Task Force	No Agenda Available
May 8	112-N	9:00 a.m.	Education Funding Task Force	No Agenda Available

Tom Day  
Director  
Legislative Administrative Services

Doc. No. 053083

## State of Kansas

# Kansas Development Finance Authority

## Notice of Hearing

A public hearing will be held at 9:00 a.m. May 13, 2025, in the offices of Kansas Development Finance Authority, 534 S. Kansas Ave., Suite 800, Topeka, Kansas, on the proposal for the Kansas Development Finance Authority to issue its Agricultural Development Revenue Bonds for the Project(s) numbered below, in the respective maximum principal amounts. The Bond(s) will be issued to assist the respective Borrower (the "Beginning Farmer") named below (who will be the owner and operator of the respective Project) to finance the cost in the amount of the Bond, which is then typically purchased by a lender bank ("Lender") who then through Kansas Development Finance Authority, loans the bond proceeds to the Borrower for the purposes of acquiring the respective Project(s) as described below. Each Project shall be located as shown:

**Project No. 001167 Maximum Principal Amount: \$206,852.79.** Owner/Operator: Evan Zabokrtsky; Description: Acquisition of 80 acres of agricultural land and related improvements and equipment to be used by the owner/operator for farming purposes (the "Project"). The Project is being financed by the Lender for Evan Zabokrtsky (the "Beginning Farmer") and is located in Section 2, Barnes Township, Washington County, Kansas, approximately 4 miles east of Barnes, Kansas on Cross Creek Road.

Each Bond when issued, will be a limited obligation of the Kansas Development Finance Authority and will not constitute a general obligation or indebtedness of the State of Kansas or any political subdivision thereof, including the Authority, nor will it be an indebtedness for which the faith and credit and taxing powers of the State of Kansas are pledged, but each Bond will be payable solely and only from amounts received from the respective Borrower, the obligation of which will be sufficient to pay the principal of, interest and redemption premium, if any, on each Bond as and when it shall become due.

Interested individuals may participate in the public hearing in person or via conference call. Please call 844-621-3956 and use conference identification number 145 880 8929 followed by # to join the conference.

At the time and place fixed for the hearings, all individuals who appear will be given an opportunity to express their views for or against the proposal to issue any specific Bond for the purpose of financing the respective Project, and all written comments previously filed with the Authority at its offices at Suite 800, 534 S. Kansas Ave., Topeka, KS 66603, will be considered. Additional information regarding any of the projects described above may be obtained by contacting the Authority at the address of its offices shown above.

Rebecca Floyd  
President  
Kansas Development Finance Authority

Doc. No. 053077

(Published in the Kansas Register April 24, 2025.)

## City of Sedgwick, Kansas

### Notice of Intent to Seek Private Placement Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2025A

Notice is hereby given that the City of Sedgwick, Kansas (the "Issuer") proposes to seek a private placement of the above-referenced bonds (the "Bonds"). The maximum aggregate principal amount of the Bonds shall not exceed \$390,000. The proposed sale of the Bonds is in all respects subject to approval of a bond purchase agreement between the Issuer and the purchaser of the Bonds and the passage of an ordinance and adoption of a resolution by the governing body authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and the execution of various documents necessary to deliver the Bonds.

Dated April 24, 2025.

Shelia Agee  
Clerk  
City of Sedgwick, Kansas

Doc. No. 053087

(Published in the Kansas Register April 24, 2025.)

## Unified School District No. 235, Bourbon County, Kansas (Uniontown)

### Summary Notice of Bond Sale \$1,250,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2025

#### (General Obligation Bonds Payable from Unlimited Ad Valorem Taxes)

#### Bids

Subject to the Notice of Bond Sale dated April 14, 2025 (the "Notice"), facsimile and electronic bids will be received on behalf of the Clerk of Unified School District No. 235, Bourbon County, Kansas (Uniontown) (the "Issuer") in the case of facsimile bids, at the address set forth below, and in the case of electronic bids, through PARITY® until 11:00 a.m. (Central Time) May 12, 2025, for the purchase of the above-referenced bonds (the "Bonds"). No bid for less than 106% of the principal amount of the Bonds, and no bid for more than 110% of the principal amount of the Bonds, will be considered.

#### Bond Details

The Bonds will consist of fully registered bonds in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds will be dated June 18, 2025, and will become due on September 1 in the years as follows:

Year	Principal Amount*
2026	\$70,000
2027	85,000
2028	90,000
2029	90,000
2030	95,000
2031	100,000
2032	105,000
2033	110,000
2034	115,000
2035	125,000
2036	130,000
2037	135,000

\* Subject to change, see the Notice

The Bonds will bear interest from the date thereof at rates to be determined when the Bonds are sold as hereinafter provided, which interest will be payable semiannually on March 1 and September 1 in each year, beginning on March 1, 2026.

#### Book-Entry-Only System

The Bonds shall be registered under a book-entry-only system administered through DTC.

#### Paying Agent and Bond Registrar

Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas.

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

## **Good Faith Deposit**

Each bid shall be accompanied (in the manner set forth in the Notice) by a good faith deposit in the form of a cashier's or certified check drawn on a bank located in the United States of America or a wire transfer in Federal Reserve funds immediately available for use by the Issuer in the amount of \$25,000.

## **Delivery**

The Issuer will pay for preparation of the Bonds and will deliver the same properly prepared, executed, and registered without cost to the successful bidder on or about June 18, 2025, to DTC for the account of the successful bidder.

## **Assessed Valuation and Indebtedness**

The Equalized Assessed Tangible Valuation for Computation of Bonded Debt Limitations for the year 2024 is \$24,897,242. The total general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer as of the Dated Date, including the Bonds being sold, is \$3,445,000.

## **Approval of Bonds**

The Bonds will be sold subject to the legal opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Wichita, Kansas, Bond Counsel to the Issuer, whose approving legal opinion as to the validity of the Bonds will be furnished and paid for by the Issuer, printed on the Bonds, and delivered to the successful bidder as and when the Bonds are delivered.

## **Additional Information**

Additional information regarding the Bonds may be obtained from the undersigned, or from the Municipal Advisor at the addresses set forth below.

## **Issuer**

Unified School District No. 235  
Attn: Pam Kimrey, Clerk  
District Office  
601 5th St.  
Uniontown, KS 66779  
620-224-2350  
Fax: 620-224-2095  
[pkimrey@uniontown235.org](mailto:pkimrey@uniontown235.org)

## **Municipal Advisor**

Piper Sandler & Co.  
Attn: Clayton Kelley  
11635 Rosewood St.  
Leawood, KS 66211  
913-345-3300  
Fax: 913-345-3393  
[clayton.kelley@psc.com](mailto:clayton.kelley@psc.com)

Dated April 14, 2025.

Pam Kimrey  
Clerk  
Unified School District No. 235

Doc. No. 053070

(Published in the Kansas Register April 24, 2025.)

## City of Osage City, Kansas

### Summary Notice of Bond Sale

**\$3,265,000\***

### General Obligation Bonds, Series 2025

#### (General Obligation Bonds Payable from Unlimited Ad Valorem Taxes)

#### Bids

Subject to the Notice of Bond Sale dated April 8, 2025 (the "Notice"), facsimile, email, and electronic bids will be received on behalf of the Clerk of the City of Osage City, Kansas (the "Issuer") in the case of facsimile or email bids, at the address set forth below, and in the case of electronic bids, through PARITY® until 11:00 a.m. (Central Time) May 13, 2025, for the purchase of the above-referenced bonds (the "Bonds"). No bid of less than 98.5% of the principal amount of the Bonds and accrued interest thereon to the date of delivery will be considered.

#### Bond Details

The Bonds will consist of fully registered bonds in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds will be dated May 29, 2025, and will become due on September 1 in the years as follows:

Year	Principal Amount*
2026	\$250,000
2027	290,000
2028	300,000
2029	310,000
2030	320,000
2031	335,000
2032	345,000
2033	360,000
2034	370,000
2035	385,000

\* Subject to change, see the Notice

The Bonds will bear interest from the date thereof at rates to be determined when the Bonds are sold as hereinafter provided, which interest will be payable semiannually on March 1 and September 1 in each year, beginning on March 1, 2026.

#### Book-Entry-Only System

The Bonds shall be registered under a book-entry-only system administered through DTC.

#### Paying Agent and Bond Registrar

Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas.

#### Good Faith Deposit

Each bid shall be accompanied (in the manner set forth in the Notice) by a good faith deposit in the form of a cashier's or certified check drawn on a bank located in the United States of America or a wire transfer in Federal Reserve funds immediately available for use by the Issuer in the amount of \$65,300.

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

## **Delivery**

The Issuer will pay for preparation of the Bonds and will deliver the same properly prepared, executed, and registered without cost to the successful bidder on or about May 29, 2025, to DTC for the account of the successful bidder or at such bank or trust company in the contiguous United States of America as may be specified by the successful bidder, or elsewhere at the expense of the successful bidder.

## **Assessed Valuation and Indebtedness**

The Equalized Assessed Tangible Valuation for Computation of Bonded Debt Limitations for the year 2024 is \$26,387,589. The total general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer as of the Dated Date, including the Bonds being sold, is \$6,600,000.

## **Approval of Bonds**

The Bonds will be sold subject to the legal opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Wichita, Kansas, Bond Counsel to the Issuer, whose approving legal opinion as to the validity of the Bonds will be furnished and paid for by the Issuer, printed on the Bonds, and delivered to the successful bidder as and when the Bonds are delivered.

## **Additional Information**

Additional information regarding the Bonds may be obtained from the undersigned, or from the Financial Advisor at the addresses set forth below.

## **Issuer Address**

City of Osage City, Kansas  
Attn: Amy Woodward, Clerk  
201 S. 5th  
Osage City, KS 66523  
785-528-3714  
Fax: 785-528-3022  
[awoodward@osagecity.com](mailto:awoodward@osagecity.com)

## **Financial Advisor – Facsimile and Email Bid and Good Faith Deposit Delivery Address**

Ranson Financial Group  
Attn: Larry Kleeman  
200 W. Douglas, Suite 110  
Wichita, KS 67202  
316-264-3400  
Fax: 316-265-5403  
[larry@citycode.com](mailto:larry@citycode.com)  
Bid Email: [bids@ransonfinancial.com](mailto:bids@ransonfinancial.com)

Dated April 8, 2025.

Amy Woodward  
Clerk  
City of Osage City, Kansas

Doc. No. 053085

(Published in the Kansas Register April 24, 2025.)

## City of Manhattan, Kansas

### Summary Notice of Bond Sale

**\$44,695,000\***

### General Obligation Bonds, Series 2025-A

#### (General Obligation Bonds Payable from Unlimited Ad Valorem Taxes)

#### Bids

Subject to the Notice of Bond Sale dated April 15, 2025 (the "Notice"), email and electronic bids will be received by Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors LLC, the Issuer's Municipal Advisor (the "Municipal Advisor") on behalf of the Director of Finance of the City of Manhattan, Kansas (the "Issuer") in the case of email bids, at the address set forth below, and in the case of electronic bids, through PARITY® until 10:30 a.m. (Central Time) May 15, 2025, for the purchase of the above-referenced bonds (the "Bonds"). No bid of less than 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds and accrued interest thereon to the date of delivery will be considered.

#### Bond Details

The Bonds will consist of fully registered bonds in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds will be dated June 12, 2025, and will become due on November 1 in the years as follows:

<b>Year</b>	<b>Principal Amount*</b>
2026	\$2,075,000
2027	2,190,000
2028	2,290,000
2029	2,415,000
2030	2,525,000
2031	2,655,000
2032	2,780,000
2033	2,930,000
2034	3,065,000
2035	3,225,000
2036	1,810,000
2037	1,910,000
2038	2,000,000
2039	2,105,000
2040	2,205,000
2041	1,540,000
2042	1,615,000
2043	1,700,000
2044	1,785,000
2045	1,875,000

\* Subject to change, see the Notice

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

The Bonds will bear interest from the date thereof at rates to be determined when the Bonds are sold as hereinafter provided, which interest will be payable semiannually on May 1 and November 1 in each year, beginning on November 1, 2025.

## **Book-Entry-Only System**

The Bonds shall be registered under a book-entry-only system administered through DTC.

## **Paying Agent and Bond Registrar**

Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas.

## **Good Faith Deposit**

Each bid shall be accompanied (in the manner set forth in the Notice) by a good faith deposit in the form of a cashier's or certified check drawn on a bank located in the United States of America or a wire transfer in Federal Reserve funds immediately available for use by the Issuer in the amount of \$893,900.

## **Delivery**

The Issuer will pay for preparation of the Bonds and will deliver the same properly prepared, executed and registered without cost to the successful bidder on or about June 12, 2025, to DTC for the account of the successful bidder.

## **Assessed Valuation and Indebtedness**

The Equalized Assessed Tangible Valuation for Computation of Bonded Debt Limitations for the year 2024 is \$793,721,827. The total general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer as of the Dated Date, including the Bonds being sold, is \$304,435,000; such amount excludes the General Obligation Temporary Notes, Series 2025-01, dated June 17, 2025, in the principal amount of \$27,885,000 being sold on the same Sale Date as the Bonds. On June 15, 2025, general obligation temporary notes in the aggregate principal amount of \$48,430,000 will be retired out of proceeds of the Bonds and other available funds of the Issuer, which will reduce the outstanding general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer to \$256,005,000.

## **Approval of Bonds**

The Bonds will be sold subject to the legal opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Wichita, Kansas, Bond Counsel to the Issuer, whose approving legal opinion as to the validity of the Bonds will be furnished and paid for by the Issuer, printed on the Bonds, and delivered to the successful bidder as and when the Bonds are delivered.

## **Additional Information**

Additional information regarding the Bonds may be obtained from the undersigned or from the Municipal Advisor at the addresses set forth below.

### **Issuer**

City of Manhattan, Kansas  
Attn: Rina Neal, Director of Finance  
City Hall  
1101 Poyntz Ave.  
Manhattan, KS 66502-5497  
785-587-2465  
[neal@cityofmhk.com](mailto:neal@cityofmhk.com)

### **Municipal Advisor**

Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC  
Attn: Bond Services  
Wells Fargo Place  
30 E. 7th St., Suite 3025

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

Saint Paul, MN 55101  
651-223-3000  
[bids@bakertilly.com](mailto:bids@bakertilly.com)

Dated April 15, 2025.

Rina Neal  
Director of Finance  
City of Manhattan, Kansas

**Doc. No. 053086**

## State of Kansas

### Secretary of State

#### Certification of New State Laws

I, Scott Schwab, Secretary of State of the State of Kansas, do hereby certify that the following bill is a correct copy of the original enrolled bill now on file in my office.

Scott Schwab  
Secretary of State

---

(Published in the Kansas Register April 24, 2025.)

### Senate Bill No. 50

AN ACT concerning postsecondary education; relating to the financing therefor; establishing uniform interest rate provisions for scholarship programs that include repayment obligations as a condition of receiving a scholarship; authorizing the board to recover the costs of collecting such repayment obligations and to charge fees for the costs of administering scholarship, grant and other financial assistance programs; requiring eligible students to enter into agreements with the state board of regents instead of a postsecondary educational institution as a condition to receiving a grant under the adult learner grant act; reducing the number of grants available and audits required under the low-income family postsecondary savings accounts incentive program; providing the audit process for certain withdrawals made under such program; amending K.S.A. 74-3260, 74-3267, 74-3272, 74-32,104, 74-32,116, 74-32,135, 74-32,153, 74-32,154, 74-32,223 and 75-650 and K.S.A. 2024 Supp. 74-3295, 74-32,276 and 74-32,286 and repealing the existing sections.

*Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:*

New Section 1. (a) On and after July 1, 2025, for any repayment obligation owed by an individual, the applicable interest rate shall be 5% per annum if such repayment obligation:

(1) Arises under any scholarship, grant or other student financial aid program established in article 32 of chapter 74 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, or under any agreement entered into pursuant thereto; and

(2) requires the payment of interest pursuant to the terms of the statute or agreement under which the individual received the scholarship, grant or other student financial aid.

(b) No interest for such scholarship, grant, or other student financial aid shall begin to accrue earlier than the date that the individual becomes required to repay such scholarship, grant or other student financial aid to the state board of regents, as determined by the state board of regents.

(c) The interest rate established in subsection (a) and the accrual date determined under subsection (b) shall apply to repayment obligations arising in relation to any scholarship, grant or other student financial aid distributed prior to July 1, 2025, pursuant to any scholarship, grant or other student financial aid program established in article 32 of chapter 74 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto.

(d) Nothing in this section shall be construed to impose an interest rate:

(1) In excess of the interest rate specified in either the applicable statute at the time an individual received the scholarship, grant or other student financial aid relating to the repayment obligation or the agreement

between the individual and an educational institution, a sponsor or the state board of regents; or

- (2) upon amounts owed to the state board of regents by educational institutions, sponsors or amounts owed to educational institutions or sponsors by the state board of regents.
- (e) No individual shall be entitled to a refund for amounts paid to the state board of regents before July 1, 2025.

New Sec. 2. The state board of regents may recover the reasonable costs of collection, including, but not limited to, court costs, attorney fees and collection agency fees, from any individual who is subject to a repayment obligation arising under any scholarship, grant or other student financial aid program established in article 32 of chapter 74 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, or under any agreement entered into pursuant thereto.

New Sec. 3. The chief executive officer of the state board of regents may fix, charge and collect fees for the processing of applications and other activities related to the administration of student financial assistance programs administered by the state board of regents. Such fees shall be fixed in amounts to recover all or a part of the direct and indirect operating expenses incurred for administering such programs. All moneys received by the state board of regents from the payment of such fees shall be deposited in the state treasury in accordance with K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto, and shall be credited to the financial aid services fee fund of the state board of regents.

Sec. 4. K.S.A. 74-3260 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-3260. (a) Upon the failure of any person, who as an eligible student qualified for and received payments under an ROTC service scholarship, to remain eligible and qualified or to satisfy the obligation to accept a commission and serve as an officer in the Kansas national guard for the required period of time under an agreement entered into pursuant to this act, such person shall pay to the state of Kansas an amount equal to the total amount of payments ~~received by~~ *disbursed on behalf* of such person plus accrued interest from the ~~date such payments were received at a rate which is equivalent to the interest rate applicable to loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such person first entered into an agreement plus five percentage points~~ *accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto, and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto.* Such payment shall commence within 30 days, and be completed within five years, after the date of the act or circumstance that causes the failure of the person to remain eligible and qualified or to satisfy the obligation of such agreement. Payments under this section shall be installment payments and each such installment shall be not less than an amount equal to  $\frac{1}{5}$  of the total amount ~~which that~~ would be required to be paid if paid in five equal annual installments. If an installment payment becomes 91 days overdue, the entire amount outstanding shall become immediately due and payable, including all interest at the rate prescribed *in section 1, and amendments thereto.* Amounts paid under this section shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the ROTC service scholarship repayment fund as provided in K.S.A. 74-3260a, and amendments thereto.

(b) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any repayment account arising under the ROTC service scholarship program over to a designated loan servicer or collection agency, the state not being involved other than to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate prescribed ~~under this section~~ *in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

Sec. 5. K.S.A. 74-3267 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-3267. (a) (1) Except as otherwise provided in K.S.A. 74-3268, and amendments thereto, upon the failure of any person to satisfy the obligation to engage in the full-time or part-time practice of medicine and surgery within the state of Kansas for the required period of time under an agreement entered into as provided in K.S.A. 74-3266, and amendments thereto, such person shall repay to the state board of regents an amount equal to the total of ~~(1)~~:

(A) The amount of money received by such person pursuant to such agreement; plus ~~(2)~~

~~(B) accrued interest from the date such money was received at a rate which is equivalent to the interest rate applicable to loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such person first entered into an agreement plus five percentage points~~ *accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto, and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

(2) Any person who applies for and enters a postgraduate residency training program that is not an approved program as provided in this section shall be required to repay all moneys ~~received~~ *disbursed on behalf of such person* as provided in an agreement entered into under K.S.A. 74-3266, and amendments thereto, plus accrued interest from the ~~date such moneys were received at a rate which is equivalent to the interest rate applicable to loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such person first entered into an agreement plus five percentage points~~ *accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto, and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto*, and shall commence such repayment in accordance with subsection (b) within 90 days of graduation from the school of osteopathic medicine or upon termination or completion of a residency training program ~~which that~~ does not comply with the provisions of this act, whichever is later.

(3) Any person who enters and completes an approved postgraduate residency training program but fails to satisfy the obligation to engage in the full-time or part-time practice of medicine and surgery for the required period of time shall be required to repay all money ~~received~~ *disbursed on behalf of such person* pursuant to an agreement entered into under K.S.A. 74-3266, and amendments thereto, plus accrued interest from the ~~date such money was received at a rate which is equivalent to the interest rate applicable to loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such person first entered into an agreement plus five percentage points~~ *accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto, and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto*, and shall commence such repayment in accordance with subsection (b) within 90 days of failure to satisfy the obligation.

(b) Each person required to repay any amount under this section shall repay an amount totaling the entire amount to be repaid under all such agreements for which obligations are not satisfied, including all amounts of interest at the rate prescribed *in section 1, and amendments thereto*. Except as otherwise provided in this section, such repayment shall be in installment payments and each such installment shall be not less than an amount equal to  $\frac{1}{5}$  of the total amount ~~which that~~ would be required to be paid if repaid in five equal annual installments.

(c) Except as otherwise provided in ~~subparts (2) and (3) of subsection (a)~~ *subsections (a)(2) and (a)(3)*, all installment payments under this section shall commence six months after the date of the action or circumstance that causes the failure of the person to satisfy the obligations of such agreements, as determined by the state board of regents based upon the circumstances of each individual case. If an installment payment becomes 91 days overdue, the entire amount outstanding shall become immediately due and payable, including all amounts of interest at the rate prescribed *in section 1, and amendments thereto*.

(d) The total repayment obligation imposed under all agreements entered into as provided in K.S.A. 74-3266, and amendments thereto, may be satisfied at any time prior to graduation from the accredited school of osteopathic medicine by making a single lump sum payment equal to the total of:

(1) The entire amount to be repaid under all such agreements upon failure to satisfy the obligations under such agreements to practice in Kansas; plus

(2) all amounts of interest accrued thereon at the rate prescribed ~~under this section~~ *in section 1, and amendments thereto*.

(e) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any repayment account arising under the osteopathic medical service scholarship program over to a designated loan servicer or collection agency, the state not being involved other than to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate prescribed ~~under this section~~ *in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

Sec. 6. K.S.A. 74-3272 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-3272. (a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (e) and in K.S.A. 74-3273, and amendments thereto, upon the failure of any person to satisfy the obligation to engage in the full-time or part-time practice of optometry within the state of Kansas for the required period of time under an agreement entered into pursuant to K.S.A. 74-3271, and amendments thereto, such person shall repay to the state board of regents an amount equal to the total of:

(1) The amount of money paid by the state board of regents for guaranteed admission and continued enrollment of such person in an accredited school or college of optometry pursuant to a contract entered into therefor under K.S.A. 76-721a, and amendments thereto; plus

(2) ~~accrued interest from the date such money was paid pursuant to such contract at a rate which is equivalent to the interest rate applicable to loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such person first entered into an agreement plus five percentage points~~ *accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto, and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

(b) Each person required to repay any amount under this section shall repay an amount totaling the entire amount to be repaid under such agreement for which such obligation is not satisfied, including all interest at the rate prescribed *in section 1, and amendments thereto.* Except as otherwise provided in this section, such repayment shall be in installment payments and each such installment shall be not less than an amount equal to  $\frac{1}{5}$  of the total amount ~~which~~ *that* would be required to be paid if repaid in five equal annual installments.

(c) All installment payments under this section shall commence six months after the date of the action or circumstance that causes the failure of the person to satisfy the obligations of such agreement, as determined by the state board of regents based upon the circumstances of each individual case. If an installment payment becomes 91 days overdue, the entire amount outstanding shall become immediately due and payable, including all interest at the rate prescribed *in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

(d) The total repayment obligation imposed under an agreement entered into pursuant to K.S.A. 74-3271, and amendments thereto, may be satisfied at any time prior to graduation from the accredited school or college of optometry by making a single lump-sum payment equal to the total of:

(1) The entire amount to be repaid under such agreement upon failure to satisfy the obligation to practice optometry in Kansas; plus

(2) ~~all interest thereon at the rate prescribed to the date of payment~~ *in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

(e) If a person fails to satisfy an obligation to engage in the full-time or part-time practice of optometry in Kansas for the required period of time under an agreement entered into pursuant to K.S.A. 74-3271, and amendments thereto, because such person is engaged in the practice of optometry in a state other than Kansas, and if such person is subject to or currently making repayments under this section, and if such person subsequently commences the practice of optometry in this state which complies with the agreements entered into under such statute, the balance of the repayment amount, including interest thereon, from the time of such commencement of practice until the obligation of such person is satisfied, or until the time such person again becomes subject to repayments, shall be waived. All repayment amounts due prior to such commencement of practice in this state, including interest thereon, shall continue to be payable as provided in this section. If subsequent to such commencement of practice, the person fails to satisfy such obligation, the person again shall be subject to repayments, including interest thereon, as otherwise provided in this section.

(f) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any repayment account arising under the optometry service scholarship program over to a designated loan servicer or collection agency, the state not being involved other than to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate prescribed ~~under this section~~ *in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

Sec. 7. K.S.A. 2024 Supp. 74-3295 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-3295. (a) Except as provided in K.S.A. 74-3296, and amendments thereto, upon the failure of any person to satisfy the obligation under any agreement entered into pursuant to the nursing service scholarship program, such person shall pay to the executive officer an amount equal to the total amount of money ~~received by~~ *disbursed on behalf of* such person pursuant to such agreement that was financed by the state of Kansas plus accrued interest ~~at a rate of 5% per annum. Interest shall begin to accrue on the date of the action or circumstances that cause such person to fail to satisfy the obligations of such agreement, as determined by the executive officer based upon the circumstances of each individual case~~ *from the accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto, and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto.* Installment payments of any such amounts may be made in accordance with rules and regulations of the state board of regents. Such installment payments shall commence six months after the date on which interest begins to accrue. Amounts paid under this section to the executive officer shall be deposited in the nursing service scholarship repayment fund in accordance with K.S.A. 74-3298, and amendments thereto.

(b) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any repayment account arising under the nursing service scholarship program over to a designated loan servicer or collection agency, the state not being involved other than to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate prescribed ~~under this~~ *in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

Sec. 8. K.S.A. 74-32,104 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-32,104. (a) Except as provided in K.S.A. 74-32,105, and amendments thereto, upon the failure of any person to satisfy the obligation under any agreement entered into pursuant to the teacher service scholarship program, such person shall pay to the executive officer an amount equal to the total amount of money ~~received by~~ *disbursed on behalf of* such person pursuant to such agreement plus accrued interest ~~at a rate which is equivalent to the interest rate applicable to loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such person first entered into an agreement plus five percentage points~~ *from the accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto, and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto.* Amounts of payment under this section shall be adjusted proportionately for full years of the obligation that have been satisfied. Installment payments of any such amounts may be made in accordance with the provisions of the agreement entered into by the scholarship recipient or if no such provisions exist in such agreement, in accordance with rules and regulations of the state board of regents, except that such installment payments shall commence six months after the date of the action or circumstances that cause the failure of the person to satisfy the obligations of such agreements, as determined by the executive officer based upon the circumstances of each individual case. Amounts paid under this section to the executive officer shall be deposited in the teacher service scholarship repayment fund in accordance with K.S.A. 74-32,107, and amendments thereto.

(b) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any repayment account arising under the teacher service scholarship program over to a designated loan servicer or collection agency, the state not being involved other than to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate prescribed ~~under this~~ *section in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

Sec. 9. K.S.A. 74-32,116 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-32,116. (a) Except as provided in K.S.A. 74-32,117, and amendments thereto, upon the failure of a person to satisfy any obligation under an agreement entered into in accordance with the Kansas ethnic minority fellowship program, such person shall pay to

the executive officer an amount equal to the total amount of money ~~received by~~ *disbursed on behalf of* such person pursuant to such agreement plus accrued interest from the ~~date such money was received at a rate which is equivalent to the interest rate applicable to loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such person first entered into an agreement plus five percentage points~~ *accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto, and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto.* Amounts of payment under this section shall be adjusted proportionately for full years of performance of the obligations that have been satisfied. Installment payments of any such amounts may be made in accordance with the provisions of the agreement entered into by the fellowship recipient or if no such provisions exist in such agreement, in accordance with rules and regulations of the state board of regents, except that such installment payments shall commence six months after the date of the action or circumstances that cause the failure of the person to satisfy the obligations of such agreements, as determined by the executive officer based upon the circumstances of each individual case. Amounts paid under this section to the executive officer shall be deposited in the Kansas ethnic minority fellowship program fund in accordance with K.S.A. 74-32,119, and amendments thereto.

(b) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any repayment account arising under the Kansas ethnic minority fellowship program over to a designated loan servicer or collection agency, the state not being involved other than to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate ~~prescribed under this section~~ *in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

Sec. 10. K.S.A. 74-32,135 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-32,135. (a) Except as provided in K.S.A. 74-32,136, and amendments thereto, upon the failure of any person to satisfy the obligation under any agreement entered into pursuant to this act, such person shall pay to the executive officer an amount equal to the total amount of money ~~received by~~ *disbursed on behalf of* such person pursuant to such agreement ~~which that is~~ *financed by the state of Kansas plus accrued interest at a rate which is equivalent to the interest rate applicable to loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such person first entered into an agreement plus five percentage points *from the accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto, and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto.* Installment payments of such amounts may be made in accordance with rules and regulations of the state board of regents, except that such installment payments shall commence six months after the date of the action or circumstances that cause the failure of the person to satisfy the obligations of such agreements, as determined by the executive officer based upon the circumstances of each individual case. Amounts paid under this section to the executive officer shall be deposited in the advanced practice registered nurse service scholarship program fund in accordance with K.S.A. 74-32,138, and amendments thereto.*

(b) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any repayment account arising under the advanced practice registered nurse service scholarship program over to a designated loan servicer or collection agency, the state not being involved other than to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate ~~prescribed under this section~~ *in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

Sec. 11. K.S.A. 74-32,153 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-32,153. (a) Upon completion of the recipient's program of study, the recipient shall be eligible for forgiveness of the loan by living and working in Kansas.

(b) By annually providing to the board of regents the required documentation certifying that the recipient worked and lived in Kansas throughout the prior year. Such documentation shall be provided to the board of regents within 30 days of the annual due date calculated from the completion of the course of study.

(c) If the required documentation certifying that the recipient lived and worked in Kansas is not received in the prescribed time by the board, the remaining loan amount shall be due and payable as prescribed under K.S.A. 74-32,154 and amendments thereto.

~~(d) Interest rates on the loan shall be determined by the state treasurer according to the interest rate received on the state idle funds plus 3%.~~

Sec. 12. K.S.A. 74-32,154 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-32,154. (a) Except as otherwise provided in K.S.A. 74-32,155, and amendments thereto, upon the failure of any person to satisfy an obligation incurred under the loan agreement as provided in K.S.A. 74-32,152, and amendments thereto, such person shall repay to the state treasurer an amount equal to the total of: (1) The amount of money ~~received by~~ *disbursed on behalf of* such person pursuant to such agreement; plus (2) accrued interest, ~~calculated at the interest rate on the state idle funds plus 3%, from the date such money was received from the accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto,~~ *and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

(b) Each person required to repay any amount under this section shall repay an amount totaling the entire amount to be repaid under all such agreements for which obligations are not satisfied, including all amounts of interest at the rate prescribed in ~~subsection (a) section 1, and amendments thereto.~~ Except as otherwise provided in this section, such repayment shall be made in installment payments determined by the state board of regents as provided in ~~subsection (c) of the K.S.A. 74-32,152(c), and amendments thereto.~~

(c) All installment payments under this section shall commence six months after the date of the action or circumstance that causes the failure of the person to satisfy the obligations of such agreements, as determined by the state board of regents based upon the circumstances of each individual case. If an installment payment becomes 91 days overdue, the entire amount outstanding shall become immediately due and payable, including all amounts of interest at the rate prescribed *in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

(d) The total repayment obligation imposed under all agreements entered into as provided in K.S.A. 74-32,152, and amendments thereto, may be satisfied at any time prior to graduation by making a single lump-sum payment equal to the total of: (1) The entire amount to be repaid under all such agreements upon failure to satisfy the obligations under such agreements to practice in Kansas; plus (2) all amounts of interest accrued thereon at the rate prescribed in ~~subsection (a) section 1, and amendments thereto.~~

(e) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any delinquent repayment account arising under the workforce development loan program to a designated loan servicer or collection agency, the state not being involved other than to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate ~~prescribed under this section~~ *in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

Sec. 13. K.S.A. 74-32,223 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-32,223. (a) Except as provided in K.S.A. 74-32,224, and amendments thereto, upon the failure of any person to satisfy the obligation under any agreement entered into pursuant to the program, such person shall pay to the executive officer an amount equal to the total amount of money ~~received by~~ *disbursed on behalf of* such person pursuant to such agreement plus accrued interest ~~at a rate which is equivalent to the interest rate applicable to loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such person first entered into an agreement plus five percentage points from the accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto,~~ *and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto.* Installment payments of any such amounts may be made in accordance with the provisions of agreements entered into by the scholarship recipient and the executive officer, in accordance with rules and regulations of the state board of regents, except that such installment payments shall commence six months after the date of the action or circumstances that cause the failure of the person to satisfy the obligations of such agreements, as determined by the executive officer based upon the circumstances of each individual case. Amounts paid under this section to the executive officer shall be deposited in the nurse educator service scholarship repayment fund in accordance with K.S.A. 74-32,226, and amendments thereto.

(b) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any repayment account arising under the program over

to a designated loan servicer or collection agency, the state not being involved other than to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate prescribed under this section in section 1, and amendments thereto.

Sec. 14. K.S.A. 2024 Supp. 74-32,276 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-32,276. (a) As a condition to receiving a Kansas promise scholarship, an eligible student shall enter into a Kansas promise scholarship agreement with the state board of regents. The eligible postsecondary educational institution making the scholarship award to such student shall counsel each eligible student on the requirements and conditions of the promise scholarship agreement. Such agreement shall require any student who receives a Kansas promise scholarship to:

(1) Enroll as a full-time or part-time student at the eligible postsecondary educational institution from which the student is receiving a Kansas promise scholarship and engage in and complete the required promise eligible program within 36 months of the date the scholarship was first awarded;

(2) within six months after graduation from the promise eligible program:

(A) Reside in and commence work in the state of Kansas for at least two consecutive years following completion of such program. A scholarship recipient may use a *form* W-2 wage and tax statement showing Kansas withholding or estimated income tax to the state of Kansas as proof of work in Kansas; or

(B) enroll as a full-time or part-time student in any public or private postsecondary educational institution with its primary location in Kansas and upon graduation or failure to re-enroll, reside in and commence work in Kansas for at least two consecutive years following the completion of such program;

(3) maintain records and make reports to the state board of regents on such forms and in such manner as required by the state board of regents to document the satisfaction of the requirements of this act; and

(4) upon failure to satisfy the requirements of a Kansas promise scholarship agreement, repay the amount of the Kansas promise scholarship the student received under the program as provided in subsection (b) to the state board of regents.

(b) (1) Except as provided in subsection (c), if any student who receives a Kansas promise scholarship fails to satisfy the requirements of a Kansas promise scholarship agreement, such student shall pay an amount equal to the total amount of money ~~received by~~ *disbursed on behalf of* such student pursuant to such agreement that is financed by the state of Kansas plus accrued interest at a rate equivalent to the interest rate applicable to ~~loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such student's first course funded by a Kansas promise scholarship award began. Interest shall begin accruing on the date the student is determined to be out of compliance with the Kansas promise scholarship agreement~~ *from the accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto, and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto.* Monthly installment payments of such amounts may be made in accordance with rules and regulations of the state board of regents. Such installment payments shall begin six months after the date of the action or circumstances that cause such student to fail to satisfy the requirements of a Kansas promise scholarship agreement, as determined by the state board of regents upon the circumstances of each individual case. All moneys received pursuant to this subsection shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the Kansas promise scholarship program fund.

(2) For any Kansas promise scholarship awarded on or after July 1, 2021, the state board of regents shall be the sole entity responsible for collecting or recouping any Kansas promise scholarship funds required to be repaid by a student who fails to satisfy the requirements of a Kansas promise scholarship agreement pursuant to this section.

(3) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any repayment account arising under this act to a designated loan servicer or collection agency to collect on the state board's behalf, the state not being involved other than to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate prescribed under ~~this subsection~~ *in section 1, and amendments thereto.*

(4) Eligible postsecondary educational institutions and each state agency are authorized to provide academic, employment, residency and contact information regarding students who received a Kansas promise scholarship to the state board of regents for the purposes of:

(A) Determining whether or not a student satisfied the requirements of this act and the Kansas promise scholarship agreement; and

(B) aiding in the collection or recoupment of any funds required to be repaid pursuant to this section.

(5) Eligible postsecondary educational institutions shall:

(A) Provide annually to the state board of regents the last known contact information of each student who received a Kansas promise scholarship until the requirements of the program and scholarship agreement are complete; and

(B) notify the state board of regents when a student who received a Kansas promise scholarship:

(i) Completes the program of study for which the student received the scholarship or has exhausted scholarship benefits; and

(ii) exceeds the 36-month program completion requirement provided in this section. This requirement shall apply to any Kansas promise scholarship awarded on or after July 1, 2021.

(6) For any Kansas promise scholarship awarded on or after July 1, 2021, eligible postsecondary educational institutions shall not be considered a contractor of the state nor shall such institutions be required to participate in tracking, collecting or recouping any funds required to be repaid by a student who fails to satisfy the requirements of a Kansas promise scholarship agreement pursuant to this section.

(c) Any requirement of a Kansas promise scholarship agreement entered into pursuant to this section may be postponed for good cause in accordance with rules and regulations of the state board of regents.

(d) A scholarship recipient satisfies the requirements of the Kansas promise scholarship program if such recipient:

(1) Completes the requirements of the scholarship agreement;

(2) commences service as a military servicemember after receiving a Kansas promise scholarship;

(3) fails to satisfy the requirements after making the best possible effort to do so as determined by the state board of regents;

(4) is unable to obtain employment or continue in employment after making the best possible effort to do so; or

(5) is unable to satisfy the requirements due to disability or death of the scholarship recipient.

Sec. 15. K.S.A. 2024 Supp. 74-32,286 is hereby amended to read as follows: 74-32,286. (a) As a condition to receiving a grant under this act, an eligible student shall enter into an agreement with the *state board of regents*. The eligible postsecondary educational institution that awarded such grant. ~~Such eligible~~

postsecondary educational institution shall counsel each eligible student on the requirements and conditions of the agreement. Such agreement shall require any student who receives a grant award to:

- (1) Enroll as a full-time or part-time student at the eligible postsecondary educational institution that made the grant award and engage in and complete the adult learner grant eligible program;
- (2) within six months after graduation from the adult learner grant eligible program:
  - (A) Reside and commence work in the state of Kansas for at least two consecutive years following completion of such program. A scholarship recipient may use a *form* W-2 wage and tax statement showing Kansas withholding or estimated income tax to the state of Kansas as proof of work in Kansas; or
  - (B) enroll as a full-time or part-time student in any public or private postsecondary educational institution with its primary location in Kansas and upon graduation or failure to re-enroll, reside in and commence work in Kansas for at least two consecutive years following the completion of such program;
- (3) maintain records and make reports to the state board of regents on such forms and in such manner as required by the state board of regents to document the satisfaction of the requirements of this act; and
- (4) upon failure to satisfy the requirements of an agreement entered into pursuant to this section, repay the amount of the grant award the student received under the program as provided in subsection (b) to the state board of regents.

(b) (1) Except as provided in subsection (c), if any student who receives a grant award fails to satisfy the requirements of the agreement entered into pursuant to this section, such student shall pay an amount equal to the total amount of money ~~received by~~ *disbursed on behalf of* such student pursuant to such agreement plus accrued interest ~~at a rate equivalent to the interest rate applicable to loans made under the federal PLUS program at the time such student's first course funded by a grant award began. Interest shall begin accruing on the date the student is determined to be out of compliance with the agreement from the accrual date determined under section 1, and amendments thereto, and at the rate prescribed in section 1, and amendments thereto.~~ Monthly installment payments of such amounts may be made in accordance with rules and regulations of the state board of regents. Such installment payments shall begin six months after the date of the action or circumstances that cause such student to fail to satisfy the requirements of the agreement, as determined by the state board of regents upon the circumstances of each individual case. All moneys received pursuant to this subsection shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the Kansas adult learner grant program fund.

(2) The state board of regents shall be the sole entity responsible for collecting or recouping any grant moneys required to be repaid by a student who fails to satisfy the requirements of an agreement entered into pursuant to this section.

(3) The state board of regents is authorized to turn any repayment account arising under this act to a designated loan servicer or collection agency to collect on the state board's behalf. The state's involvement shall only be to receive payments from the loan servicer or collection agency at the interest rate prescribed ~~under this subsection in section 1, and amendments thereto.~~

(4) Eligible postsecondary educational institutions and each state agency are authorized to provide academic, employment, residency and contact information regarding students who received a grant award to the state board of regents for the purposes of:

(A) Determining whether or not a student satisfied the requirements of this act and the agreement entered into pursuant to this section; and

- (B) aiding in the collection or recoupment of any funds required to be repaid pursuant to this section.
- (5) Eligible postsecondary educational institutions shall:
  - (A) Provide annually to the state board of regents the last known contact information of each student who received a grant award until the requirements of the program and the agreement are complete; and
  - (B) notify the state board of regents when a student who received a grant award completes the program of study for which the student received the grant or has exhausted the benefits available under this act.
- (6) Eligible postsecondary educational institutions shall not be considered a contractor of the state nor shall such institutions be required to participate in tracking, collecting or recouping any moneys required to be repaid by a student who fails to satisfy the requirements of an agreement entered into pursuant to this section.
- (c) Any requirement of an agreement entered into pursuant to this section may be postponed for good cause in accordance with rules and regulations of the state board of regents.
- (d) A scholarship recipient satisfies the requirements of the adult learner grant program if such recipient:
  - (1) Completes the requirements of the agreement entered into pursuant to this section;
  - (2) commences service as a military servicemember after receiving a grant award;
  - (3) fails to satisfy the requirements after making the best possible effort to do so as determined by the state board of regents;
  - (4) is unable to obtain employment or continue in employment after making the best possible effort to do so; or
  - (5) is unable to satisfy the requirements due to disability or death of the grant recipient.

Sec. 16. K.S.A. 75-650 is hereby amended to read as follows: 75-650. (a) As used in this section:

- (1) "Federal poverty level" means the most recent poverty income guidelines published in the calendar year by the United States department of health and human services.
- (2) "Program" means the low-income family postsecondary savings accounts incentive program established by this section.
- (3) "Qualified individual or family" means an individual or family who resides within the state of Kansas and whose household income is positive and not more than 200% of the federal poverty level for the tax year prior to the year in which the application is submitted.
- (4) "Participant" means a qualified individual or family who has been approved for a matching grant under the program.
- (5) "District" means a congressional district of the state of Kansas.
- (6) "Application" means an application for a matching grant under the program.
- (7) "Third-party contributor" means any individual or organization who contributes ~~money~~ moneys to a family postsecondary savings account established pursuant to K.S.A. 75-640 et seq., and amendments thereto, other than the account owner who established such family postsecondary savings account for the benefit of the participant.

(8) Words and phrases have the meanings provided by K.S.A. 75-643, and amendments thereto, unless otherwise provided by this section.

(b) There is hereby established the low-income family postsecondary savings accounts incentive program. The purpose of the program is to encourage the establishment of family postsecondary savings accounts pursuant to K.S.A. 75-640, and amendments thereto, by qualified individuals and families.

(c) The treasurer shall:

(1) Implement and administer the program;

(2) develop marketing plans and promotional material for the program;

(3) prescribe the procedure for, and requirements relating to, the submission and approval of applications;

(4) do all things necessary and proper to carry out the purposes of this act; and

(5) adopt any rules and regulations and policies deemed necessary for implementation and administration of the program.

(d) Applications shall be submitted to the treasurer in the manner and form required by the treasurer. Applications shall be accompanied by any information deemed necessary by the treasurer. Applications ~~must~~ *shall* be submitted each year using the applicant's household income from the previous tax year.

(e) ~~Beginning in calendar year 2009~~*In calendar years 2025, 2026 and 2027*, the treasurer may approve ~~no not more than 300~~ *250* applications from a single district. If ~~300~~ *250* applications from residents of a district are not approved in ~~each such~~ *each such* calendar year ~~2009 or any year thereafter~~, the treasurer may approve additional applications submitted by residents of the remaining districts of up to the program total of ~~1,200~~ *1,000* applications per year. Applications shall be approved on a first come, first served basis. The treasurer shall provide written notice, to an applicant, of the approval or nonapproval of such person's application. *For calendar year 2028, and each calendar year thereafter, the treasurer shall not accept nor approve any application for the program.*

(f) The amount of contributions made to an account by an account owner who establishes a family postsecondary savings account for the benefit of a participant pursuant to K.S.A. 75-640 et seq., and amendments thereto, shall be matched by the state on a dollar-for-dollar basis if the account owner contributes at least \$100 to a family postsecondary education savings account for the benefit of the participant ~~during the calendar year~~ *any of the calendar years 2025, 2026 and 2027* for which the application has been approved. The aggregate of all matching amounts for any family postsecondary savings account shall not exceed \$600 ~~in for~~ any calendar year. All contributions by a third-party contributor shall be deposited in the matching grant account for the participant established by the treasurer or another similar account for which the withdrawals are restricted as required by subsection (h).

(g) Between January 1 and January 31 of each state fiscal year, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the Kansas postsecondary education savings program trust fund the amount, as certified by the treasurer, necessary to meet the matching obligations under subsection (f) for the preceding calendar year, except that the amount transferred from the state general fund to the Kansas postsecondary education savings program trust fund shall not exceed the maximum amount specified by appropriation act for such purpose for that state fiscal year. On or before January 31 of each year, the treasurer shall transfer from the Kansas postsecondary education savings program trust fund to the account of each participant the amount determined by the treasurer to meet the matching obligation due to such participant under subsection (f) for the preceding calendar year.

~~(h) (1) The treasurer shall ensure that all withdrawals of matching funds are used for qualified withdrawals under K.S.A. 75-640 et seq., and amendments thereto. The treasurer shall not be required to prospectively approve any withdrawals under the program. Withdrawals of matching funds under the program shall be subject to audit as provided in this subsection.~~

(2) *The treasurer shall retrospectively audit at least 10 withdrawals of matching funds under the program made during each of the calendar years 2025, 2026 and 2027 to determine whether each such withdrawal was a qualified withdrawal or a nonqualified withdrawal under K.S.A. 75-640 et seq., and amendments thereto. The treasurer shall notify any participant whose withdrawal was selected for audit and request such participant to provide to the treasurer any documentation and information deemed necessary by the treasurer to facilitate the audit and determine whether the withdrawal was a qualified withdrawal or a nonqualified withdrawal under K.S.A. 75-640 et seq., and amendments thereto. Such documentation and information shall be submitted to the treasurer in the manner and form required by the treasurer on or before a deadline established by the treasurer and specified in the notice. If the participant does not timely respond to the notice of the audit, the audited withdrawal shall be conclusively presumed to be a nonqualified withdrawal. If the participant does not timely respond to the notice of audit or the treasurer otherwise determines that the audited withdrawal was a nonqualified withdrawal, then the treasurer shall provide notice thereof to the Kansas department of revenue or other appropriate taxing authorities as determined by the treasurer and the participant.*

(3) *The treasurer's determination that a withdrawal is a nonqualified withdrawal under K.S.A. 75-640 et seq., and amendments thereto, shall be conclusive for the purposes of this act, absent manifest error.*

(4) *If the treasurer determines that the audited withdrawal was a nonqualified withdrawal under K.S.A. 75-640 et seq., and amendments thereto, then the participant shall refund the matching portion of the withdrawal by paying such portion to the treasurer, on payment terms established by the treasurer. Any such amounts that remain due and unpaid after the date prescribed by the treasurer for the payment thereof shall be subject to interest at the rate of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, from the date prescribed by the treasurer for the payment thereof. To collect such refund and interest from the participant, the treasurer is authorized to certify the amount due for setoff pursuant to K.S.A. 75-6201 et seq., and amendments thereto, and to exercise any other enforcement right otherwise available to the treasurer. The refund requirement under this act is in addition to and not in substitution for any other fine, penalty, interest or other consequence otherwise imposed by law in connection with withdrawals from the Kansas postsecondary education savings program.*

(i) *The treasurer shall deposit all refunds and interest received under subsection (h) in the state treasury to the credit of the state general fund.*

~~(i)(j)~~ (j) *The treasurer shall prepare and submit to the governor and the legislature a report on the program on or before January 31 of each year 2026, 2027 and 2028. Such report shall include the number of accounts opened under the program, the amount of moneys contributed to such accounts by the participants, the amount of matching moneys transferred by the treasurer pursuant to subsection (g), the average income of the participants, an analysis of the success of the program in meeting the purpose of the program the number and results of any audit performed pursuant to subsection (h) and any other information deemed appropriate by the treasurer.*

~~(j)(k)~~ (k) *The provisions of this section shall be a part of and supplemental to the Kansas postsecondary education savings program.*

Sec. 17. K.S.A. 74-3260, 74-3267, 74-3272, 74-32,104, 74-32,116, 74-32,135, 74-32,153, 74-32,154, 74-32,223 and 75-650 and K.S.A. 2024 Supp. 74-3295, 74-32,276 and 74-32,286 are hereby repealed.

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

Sec. 18. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the Kansas register.

**Doc. No. 053089**

State of Kansas

## Secretary of State Certification of New State Laws

I, Scott Schwab, Secretary of State of the State of Kansas, do hereby certify that the following bill is a correct copy of the original enrolled bill now on file in my office.

Scott Schwab  
Secretary of State

---

(Published in the Kansas Register April 24, 2025.)

### Substitute for Senate Bill No. 193

AN ACT concerning the state board of pharmacy; relating to emergency opioid antagonists; exempting law enforcement agencies who do not provide emergency opioid antagonist pursuant to the statewide protocol from the requirement to procure a physician medical director; amending K.S.A. 2024 Supp. 65-16,127 and repealing the existing section.

*Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:*

Section 1. K.S.A. 2024 Supp. 65-16,127 is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-16,127. (a) As used in this section:

- (1) "Bystander" means a family member, friend, caregiver or other person in a position to assist a person who the family member, friend, caregiver or other person believes, in good faith, to be experiencing an opioid overdose.
- (2) "Emergency opioid antagonist" means any drug that inhibits the effects of opioids and that is approved by the United States food and drug administration for the treatment of an opioid overdose.
- (3) "First responder" includes any emergency medical service provider, as defined by K.S.A. 65-6112, and amendments thereto, any law enforcement officer, as defined by K.S.A. 22-2202, and amendments thereto, and any actual member of any organized fire department, whether regular or volunteer.
- (4) "First responder agency" includes, but is not limited to, any law enforcement agency, fire department or criminal forensic laboratory of any city, county or the state of Kansas.
- (5) "Opioid antagonist protocol" means the protocol established by the state board of pharmacy pursuant to subsection (b).
- (6) "Opioid overdose" means an acute condition including, but not limited to, extreme physical illness, decreased level of consciousness, respiratory depression, coma, mania or death, resulting from the consumption or use of an opioid or another substance with which an opioid was combined, or that a layperson would reasonably believe to be resulting from the consumption or use of an opioid or another substance with which an opioid was combined, and for which medical assistance is required.
- (7) "Patient" means a person believed to be at risk of experiencing an opioid overdose.
- (8) "School nurse" means a professional nurse licensed by the board of nursing and employed by a school district to perform nursing procedures in a school setting.

(9) “Healthcare provider” means a physician licensed to practice medicine and surgery by the state board of healing arts, a licensed dentist, a mid-level practitioner as defined by K.S.A. 65-1626, and amendments thereto, or any person authorized by law to prescribe medication.

(b) The state board of pharmacy shall issue a statewide opioid antagonist protocol that establishes requirements for a licensed pharmacist to dispense emergency opioid antagonists to a person pursuant to this section. The opioid antagonist protocol shall include procedures to ensure accurate recordkeeping and education of the person to whom the emergency opioid antagonist is furnished, including, but not limited to: Opioid overdose prevention, recognition and response; safe administration of an emergency opioid antagonist; potential side effects or adverse events that may occur as a result of administering an emergency opioid antagonist; a requirement that the administering person immediately contact emergency medical services for a patient; and the availability of drug treatment programs.

(c) A pharmacist may furnish an emergency opioid antagonist to a patient or bystander subject to the requirements of this section, the pharmacy act of the state of Kansas and any rules and regulations adopted by the state board of pharmacy thereunder.

(d) A pharmacist furnishing an emergency opioid antagonist pursuant to this section may not permit the person to whom the emergency opioid antagonist is furnished to waive any consultation required by this section or any rules and regulations adopted thereunder.

(e) Any first responder, scientist or technician operating under a first responder agency or school nurse is authorized to possess, store, distribute and administer emergency opioid antagonists as clinically indicated, provided that all personnel with access to emergency opioid antagonists are trained, at a minimum, on the following:

- (1) Techniques to recognize signs of an opioid overdose;
- (2) standards and procedures to store, distribute and administer an emergency opioid antagonist;
- (3) emergency follow-up procedures, including the requirement to summon emergency ambulance services either immediately before or immediately after administering an emergency opioid antagonist to a patient; and
- (4) inventory requirements and reporting any administration of an emergency opioid antagonist to a healthcare provider.

(f) (1) Any first responder agency electing to provide an emergency opioid antagonist to its employees or volunteers for the purpose of administering the emergency opioid antagonist shall procure the services of a physician to serve as physician medical director for the first responder agency’s emergency opioid antagonist program.

(2) The first responder agency shall utilize the physician medical director or a licensed pharmacist for the purposes of:

- (A) Obtaining a supply of emergency opioid antagonists;
- (B) receiving assistance developing necessary policies and procedures that comply with this section and any rules and regulations adopted thereunder;
- (C) training personnel; and
- (D) coordinating agency activities with local emergency ambulance services and medical directors to provide quality assurance activities.

(3) A law enforcement agency shall be exempt from this subsection unless electing to provide an emergency opioid antagonist dispensed or furnished pursuant to the opioid antagonist protocol in subsection (b).

(g) (1) Any healthcare provider or pharmacist who, in good faith and with reasonable care, prescribes or dispenses an emergency opioid antagonist pursuant to this section shall not, by an act or omission, be subject to civil liability, criminal prosecution or any disciplinary or other adverse action by a professional licensure entity arising from the healthcare provider or pharmacist prescribing or dispensing the emergency opioid antagonist.

(2) Any patient, bystander, school nurse, or a first responder, scientist or technician operating under a first responder agency, who, in good faith and with reasonable care, receives and administers an emergency opioid antagonist pursuant to this section to a person experiencing a suspected opioid overdose shall not, by an act or omission, be subject to civil liability or criminal prosecution, unless personal injury results from the gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct in the administration of the emergency opioid antagonist.

(3) Any first responder agency employing or contracting any person that, in good faith and with reasonable care, administers an emergency opioid antagonist pursuant to this section to a person experiencing a suspected opioid overdose shall not, by an act or omission, be subject to civil liability, criminal prosecution, any disciplinary or other adverse action by a professional licensure entity or any professional review.

(h) The state board of pharmacy shall adopt rules and regulations as may be necessary to implement the provisions of this section prior to January 1, 2018.

(i) This section shall be a part of and supplemental to the pharmacy act of the state of Kansas.

Sec. 2. K.S.A. 2024 Supp. 65-16,127 is hereby repealed.

Sec. 3. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the Kansas register.

**Doc. No. 053090**

**State of Kansas**

## Secretary of State

### Certification of New State Laws

I, Scott Schwab, Secretary of State of the State of Kansas, do hereby certify that the following bill is a correct copy of the original enrolled bill now on file in my office.

Scott Schwab  
Secretary of State

---

**(Published in the Kansas Register April 24, 2025.)**

## Senate Bill No. 199

AN ACT concerning fire protection; relating to the fallen firefighters memorial; designating the existing fallen firefighters memorial within the Kansas firefighters museum in Wichita as the official fallen firefighters memorial of the state of Kansas; creating the Kansas fallen firefighters memorial council; abolishing the existing Kansas firefighters memorial advisory committee and transferring such committee's powers, duties, functions, records and other property to the newly created council; requiring expenditures from the Kansas fallen firefighters memorial fund for the purposes of constructing, updating and repairing the memorial and allowing expenditures to be made for other purposes related to memorializing and honoring Kansas firefighters; relating to fireworks; defining the fireworks sales season for seasonal retailers of consumer fireworks and providing for year-round sales by permanent retailers of consumer fireworks; requiring registration with the state fire marshal by permanent retailers; creating the license categories of distributor of display fireworks, distributor of articles pyrotechnic and unlimited distributor; limiting lawful sale of fireworks labeled "For Professional Use Only" to certain license categories; amending K.S.A. 31-502, 31-503 and 75-36,102 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 75-36,103.

*Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:*

New Section 1. The Kansas firefighters memorial advisory committee is hereby abolished, and all powers, duties, functions, records and other property of the Kansas firefighters memorial advisory committee are hereby transferred to the Kansas fallen firefighters memorial council created by section 2, and amendments thereto.

New Sec. 2. (a) There is hereby established the Kansas fallen firefighters memorial council, which shall be composed of nine members as follows:

- (1) A representative of the Kansas state firefighters association appointed by the governor;
- (2) a representative of the Kansas state association of fire chiefs appointed by the governor;
- (3) a representative of the Kansas firefighters museum appointed by the governor;
- (4) a representative of the Kansas council of firefighters appointed by the governor;
- (5) a representative of the Wichita park board appointed by the governor;
- (6) a representative of the Kansas state funeral assistance team appointed by the governor;

- (7) a representative of the fire marshal's association of Kansas appointed by the governor;
  - (8) the state fire marshal or the marshal's designee; and
  - (9) the executive director of the Kansas state historical society or the executive director's designee.
- (b) The council shall make recommendations to the governor and the legislature regarding appropriate activities memorializing or commemorating the services of firefighters in Kansas, including, but not limited to, recommendations concerning the updating and repairing of the fallen firefighters memorial pursuant to K.S.A. 75-36,102, and amendments thereto. The council may solicit grants, gifts, contributions and bequests for the memorial and shall remit all moneys so received for deposit in the state treasury to the credit of the Kansas firefighters memorial fund in accordance with K.S.A. 75-36,102, and amendments thereto.
- (c) The members of the council shall organize annually by electing a chairperson and vice chairperson. The council shall meet at least once each year upon the call of the chairperson. The secretary of administration, or the secretary's designee, shall serve as secretary for the council. Members of the council appointed by the governor under this section shall serve at the pleasure of the governor.

Sec. 3. K.S.A. 31-502 is hereby amended to read as follows: 31-502. As used in this act, unless the context otherwise requires:

- (a) ~~“Licensed display fireworks operator” means a person licensed to operate an outdoor display of display fireworks.~~
- (b) ~~“Licensed proximate pyrotechnic operator” means a person licensed to operate indoor or outdoor articles of pyrotechnic.~~
- (c) ~~“Manufacturer” means any person engaged in the manufacture of fireworks of any kind in the state of Kansas. Manufacturer shall also include any person engaged in the assembly of consumer fireworks or component parts into a finished item or assortment, but shall not include repackaging finished goods into an assortment.~~
- (d) ~~“Distributor” means any person engaged in the distribution of fireworks of any kind in the state of Kansas to include the following:~~
- (1) ~~Sells, delivers, transports, consigns, gives, imports, exports or otherwise furnishes consumer fireworks to any person for the purpose of resale to a retailer or any other distributor or reseller within the state of Kansas;~~
  - (2) ~~sells, intends to sell, offer for sale, possess with intent to sell or consigns display fireworks or articles pyrotechnic to any person, distributor, municipality or any other organization within the state of Kansas; or~~
  - (3) ~~produces, conducts or provides a licensed operator or imports any display fireworks or articles pyrotechnic of any kind within the state of Kansas for profit.~~
- (e) ~~“Distributor” shall not include:~~
- (1) ~~Anyone who transports fireworks from one state to another state through the state of Kansas and such fireworks ultimate destination is not within the state of Kansas;~~
  - (2) ~~anyone who sells consumer fireworks during a fireworks season as a seasonal retailer;~~
  - (3) ~~freight delivery companies or common carriers as defined in U.S. department of transportation 49 C.F.R. § 171.8; or~~

~~(4) — an out-of-state person who sells, transports, delivers or gives fireworks to a licensed manufacturer or distributor.~~

~~(f) — “Hobbyist manufacturer” means any person who manufactures consumer fireworks, display fireworks or articles pyrotechnic for their personal use.~~

~~(g) — “Person” means any individual, partnership, firm, company, association, corporation, not-for-profit organization, municipality or limited liability corporation.~~

~~(h) — “Seasonal retailer” means a person who receives consumer fireworks and sells, delivers, consigns, gives or otherwise furnishes consumer fireworks only to the public for their personal use and only during a fireworks season.~~

~~(i) — “Storage” means the safekeeping of fireworks in a warehouse or magazine or comparable appropriate depository. Consumer fireworks that are located at the destination of their retail sale and that are being held in anticipation of retail sale shall not be considered as in storage.~~

~~(j) — “Fireworks season” means a period in time as set forth in the regulations authorized to be adopted by the state fire marshal during a calendar year in which seasonal retailers are permitted to sell consumer fireworks to the public.~~

~~(k) — “Fireworks display” means a private or public production of display fireworks or articles pyrotechnic, or both, which are intended for use and designed to produce visible or audible effects for entertainment purposes by combustion, deflagration or detonation.~~

*(a) (1) “Distributor of display fireworks” means any person engaged in the distribution of display fireworks in the state of Kansas, including:*

*(A) Selling, intending to sell, offering for sale, possessing with intent to sell or consigning display fireworks to any person, distributor, municipality or any other organization within the state of Kansas; or*

*(B) producing, conducting or providing to a licensed operator or importing any display fireworks of any kind within the state of Kansas for profit.*

*(2) “Distributor of display fireworks” does not include the exclusions set forth in the definition of “unlimited distributor.”*

*(b) (1) “Distributor of articles pyrotechnic” means any person engaged in the distribution of articles pyrotechnic in the state of Kansas, including:*

*(A) Selling, intending to sell, offering for sale, possessing with intent to sell or consigning articles pyrotechnic to any person, distributor, municipality or any other organization within the state of Kansas; or*

*(B) producing, conducting or providing to a licensed operator or importing any articles pyrotechnic of any kind within the state of Kansas for profit.*

*(2) “Distributor of display fireworks” does not include the exclusions set forth in the definition of “unlimited distributor.”*

*(c) “Fireworks display” means a private or public production of display fireworks or articles pyrotechnic, or both, that are intended for use and designed to produce visible or audible effects for entertainment purposes by combustion, deflagration or detonation.*

*(d) “Hobbyist manufacturer” means any person who manufactures consumer fireworks, display fireworks or articles pyrotechnic for their personal use.*

(e) *“Licensed display fireworks operator” means a person licensed to operate an outdoor display of display fireworks.*

(f) *“Licensed proximate pyrotechnic operator” means a person licensed to operate indoor or outdoor articles pyrotechnic.*

(g) *“Manufacturer” means any person engaged in the manufacture of fireworks of any kind in the state of Kansas. “Manufacturer” includes any person engaged in the assembly of consumer fireworks or component parts into a finished item or assortment but does not include repackaging finished goods into an assortment.*

(h) *“Permanent retailer” means any person engaged in the year-round retail sale of consumer fireworks, including the receipt and possession with intent to sell of consumer fireworks and the retail sale, delivery, consignment, gifting or other distribution at retail of consumer fireworks to any person from a permanent structure at a permanent location within this state.*

(i) *“Person” means any individual, partnership, firm, company, association, corporation, not-for-profit organization, municipality or limited liability corporation.*

(j) *“Seasonal retailer” means a person who receives consumer fireworks and sells, delivers, consigns, gives or otherwise furnishes consumer fireworks only to the public for their personal use and only during the period of June 20 through July 7 of a calendar year.*

(k) *“Storage” means the safekeeping of fireworks in a warehouse or magazine or comparable appropriate depository. Consumer fireworks that are located at the destination of their retail sale and being held in anticipation of retail sale are not considered as in “storage.”*

(l) (1) *“Unlimited distributor” means any person engaged in the distribution of fireworks of any kind in the state of Kansas, including:*

(A) *Selling, delivering, transporting, consigning, giving, importing, exporting or otherwise furnishing consumer fireworks to any person for the purpose of reselling to a retailer or any other distributor or reseller within the state of Kansas;*

(B) *selling, intending to sell, offering for sale, possessing with intent to sell or consigning display fireworks or articles pyrotechnic to any person, distributor, municipality or any other organization within the state of Kansas; or*

(C) *producing, conducting or providing a licensed operator or importing any display fireworks or articles pyrotechnic of any kind for profit within the state of Kansas.*

(2) *“Unlimited distributor” does not include:*

(A) *Any person who transports fireworks from one state to another state through the state of Kansas and such fireworks’ ultimate destination is not within the state of Kansas;*

(B) *any person who sells consumer fireworks during the period of June 20 through July 7 of a calendar year as a seasonal retailer;*

(C) *any person who sells consumer fireworks year-round as a permanent retailer;*

(D) *freight delivery companies or common carriers as defined in U.S. department of transportation 49 C.F.R. § 171.8; or*

(E) *an out-of-state person who sells, transports, delivers or gives fireworks to a licensed manufacturer or distributor.*

Sec. 4. K.S.A. 31-503 is hereby amended to read as follows: 31-503. (a) Any person who intends to sell, offer for sale, possess with intent to sell, any consumer fireworks, display fireworks or articles pyrotechnic or discharge, use, display fireworks or articles pyrotechnic shall first obtain the appropriate license from the state fire marshal. This shall not include seasonal retailers.

(b) The types of license shall be as follows:

- (1) Manufacturer;
- (2) hobbyist manufacturer;
- (3) *distributor of display fireworks*;
- (4) *distributor of articles pyrotechnic*;
- (5) *unlimited distributor*;
- ~~(4)~~(6) display fireworks operator; and
- ~~(5)~~(7) proximate pyrotechnic operator.

(c) *It shall be unlawful for any person to possess, purchase, sell or offer for sale fireworks labeled "For Professional Use Only" that is not a current licensee and in physical possession of a license, issued by the state fire marshal, as a:*

- (1) *Manufacturer*;
- (2) *hobbyist manufacturer*;
- (3) *distributor of display fireworks*;
- (4) *distributor of articles pyrotechnic*;
- (5) *unlimited distributor*;
- (6) *display fireworks operator*; or
- (7) *proximate pyrotechnic operator*.

(d) Before a license holder may operate, such license holder ~~must~~ *shall* satisfy the requirements of this act and regulations adopted by the state fire marshal.

~~(d)~~(e) The license holder shall be at least 21 years of age upon applying for a license.

~~(e)~~(f) Licenses shall not be transferable.

~~(f)~~(g) The state fire marshal shall not charge or collect fees for licensure. The licenses shall be valid for the following period of time:

- (1) A manufacturer license shall be valid for a period of one year. A holder of a manufacturer license is not required to have any additional licenses in order to manufacture and sell any fireworks defined by this act.
- (2) A hobbyist manufacturer license shall be valid for a period of four years.
- (3) A distributor license shall be valid for a period of one year.
- (4) A display fireworks operator license shall be valid for a period of four years.

(5) A proximate pyrotechnics operator license shall be valid for a period of four years.

~~(g)~~(h) A permit to conduct a fireworks display shall be obtained by the sponsor or operator of a fireworks display from and approved by the city or county where the fireworks display is to be discharged.

~~(h)~~(i) No fee shall be charged for a license or permit under this section for any person who is an officer or employee of the state or any political or taxing subdivision of the state when that person is acting on behalf of the state or political or taxing subdivision.

(j) *All retail sales or transfers of consumer fireworks shall be made by a registered permanent retailer or a seasonal retailer at a physical location.*

(k) *Any person who intends to sell consumer fireworks at retail as a permanent retailer shall register annually as a permanent retailer with the state fire marshal. Such registration shall entitle the person to engage in the possession for purposes of retail sale, delivery, consignment, gifting or other distribution at retail of consumer fireworks to any person as a permanent retailer, subject to the provisions, limitations and requirements of this act and regulations of the state fire marshal for a permanent retailer. Registration shall be effective for one year from the date of registration. Registration shall be made in the form and manner as determined by the state fire marshal. Registration requirements shall include submission by a registrant of permanent business contact information, the address of the physical location or locations that retail sales will occur, the time period or periods sales will occur and any other information that may be required by the state fire marshal.*

(l) *The state fire marshal shall adopt rules and regulations as necessary for the purpose of implementing the provisions of subsections (c), (j) and (k).*

Sec. 5. K.S.A. 75-36,102 is hereby amended to read as follows: 75-36,102. ~~(a) There shall be placed on state property within the state capitol plaza area a memorial to Kansas firefighters who have lost their lives in the line of duty in the service of the state. Such memorial shall be located at a site to be selected by the director. Such memorial shall be constructed in accordance with the design and architectural drawings approved by the director. The memorial shall be of such a design that the names of the firefighters to be honored, both past and future, may be inscribed thereon. The fallen firefighters memorial adjacent to the Kansas firefighters museum at 1300 S. Broadway Wichita, KS 67211, is hereby designated as the official fallen firefighters memorial within the state of Kansas. Annually, the director shall cause annually the name or names of any firefighters who have lost their lives in the line of duty in the service of the state to be inscribed upon the memorial. The memorial for Kansas firefighters is subject to the provisions, procedures and approvals required under K.S.A. 75-36,102 through 75-36,106, and amendments thereto, except that such memorial for Kansas firefighters is hereby authorized by the legislature for purposes of subsection (b) of K.S.A. 75-36,106, and amendments thereto.~~

(b) It shall be the duty of the state fire marshal on or before the 15<sup>th</sup> day of March of each year to notify the secretary of administration of the name or names of any firefighters who *have* lost their lives in the line of duty during the preceding calendar year. The state fire marshal shall ~~assemble~~ *gather* the necessary information regarding any such firefighter and report ~~the same~~ *such information* to the director.

~~(c) The secretary of administration~~ *Kansas fallen firefighters memorial council* is hereby authorized to receive any grants, gifts, contributions or bequests made for the purpose of financing ~~the construction of such memorial or for its upkeep and the addition of names thereto and to expend the same for the purpose for which received expenditures authorized pursuant to subsection (d).~~

(d) There is hereby established in the state treasury the *Kansas fallen firefighters memorial fund*. Expenditures from the fund ~~may~~ *shall* be made for the purposes of ~~constructing, updating and repairing such the fallen firefighters memorial, and may be made for other purposes related to memorializing and honoring Kansas firefighters and for such purposes as may be specified with regard to any grant, gift, contribution or bequest. All~~

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

such expenditures shall be authorized by the Kansas *fallen* firefighters memorial ~~advisory committee~~ *council* and made upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the secretary of administration or the secretary's designee.

(e) On or before the 10<sup>th</sup> of each month, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the Kansas *fallen* firefighters memorial fund interest earnings based on:

(1) The average daily balance of moneys in the Kansas *fallen* firefighters memorial fund for the preceding month; and

(2) the net earnings rate for the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month.

Sec. 6. K.S.A. 31-502, 31-503, 75-36,102 and 75-36,103 are hereby repealed.

Sec. 7. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the Kansas register.

**Doc. No. 053091**

**State of Kansas**

## Secretary of State

### Certification of New State Laws

I, Scott Schwab, Secretary of State of the State of Kansas, do hereby certify that the following bill is a correct copy of the original enrolled bill now on file in my office.

Scott Schwab  
Secretary of State

---

(Published in the Kansas Register April 24, 2025.)

## Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2172

AN ACT concerning water; establishing the water program task force to evaluate the state's water program and funding for such program; requiring the task force to establish a water planning work group and submit reports to certain legislative committees and the governor.

*Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:*

Section 1. (a) There is hereby established the water program task force. The task force shall consist of:

(1) The following 13 voting members:

- (A) The chair of the house of representatives committee on water or the chair's designee;
- (B) the chair of the house of representatives committee on agriculture and natural resources or the chair's designee;
- (C) the chair of the senate committee on agriculture and natural resources or the chair's designee;
- (D) the ranking minority member of the house of representatives committee on water or the ranking member's designee;
- (E) the ranking minority member of the senate agriculture and natural resources committee or the ranking member's designee;
- (F) one member of the house of representatives who does not sit on the committee on water or the committee on agriculture and natural resources appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives;
- (G) one member of the senate who does not sit on the committee on agriculture and natural resources appointed by the president of the senate;
- (H) four Kansas residents jointly appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives and the president of the senate; and
- (I) two Kansas residents jointly appointed by the minority leader of the house of representatives and the minority leader of the senate; and

(2) the following three nonvoting ex officio members:

- (A) The director of the bureau of water of the department of health and environment;

- (B) the director of the Kansas water office; and
- (C) the chief engineer of the Kansas department of agriculture division of water resources.
- (b) Each voting member of the task force who is not a member of the legislature shall represent at least one of the following stakeholders:
  - (1) A Kansas employer with a vested water right;
  - (2) a commercial user of a municipal or industrial water right;
  - (3) an agricultural producer;
  - (4) an economic development organization;
  - (5) a water utility;
  - (6) a resident Kansas Indian tribe, Potawatomi, Kickapoo, Iowa or Sac and Fox;
  - (7) a rural water district;
  - (8) a local conservation district;
  - (9) an organization that focuses on environmental or wildlife protection or conservation;
  - (10) a local water management district;
  - (11) the Kansas agricultural banking or appraisal industry;
  - (12) a student at a state educational institution engaged in a course of study related to water;
  - (13) a Kansas municipality;
  - (14) a provider of natural resources education;
  - (15) the Kansas agricultural commodity associations;
  - (16) the Kansas water authority or regional advisory committee;
  - (17) the Kansas livestock industry; or
  - (18) the Kansas grain and feed industry.
- (c) (1) Members of the task force shall be residents of Kansas. The task force shall consist of at least one member from each of the five conservation regions of the state. Not more than two members of the task force who are not members of the legislature shall represent the same stakeholder enumerated in subsection (b).
- (2) The speaker of the house of representatives and the president of the senate shall ensure that the requirements of paragraph (1) are met.
- (d) Members of the task force shall be appointed by April 30, 2025. Any vacancy in the membership of the task force shall be filled by appointment in the same manner prescribed by this section for the original appointment.
- (e) The speaker of the house of representatives shall select one member of the task force who is a member of the house of representatives to serve as co-chairperson of the task force. The president of the senate shall select one member of the task force who is a member of the senate to serve as co-chairperson of the task force.

- (f) (1) The task force may meet at any time and at any place within the state upon the call of either co-chairperson.
- (2) A majority of voting members shall constitute a quorum of the task force. All actions of the task force may be taken by a majority of members present when there is a quorum.
- (3) If approved by the legislative coordinating council, members of the task force attending meetings authorized by the task force shall be paid amounts for expenses, mileage and subsistence as provided in K.S.A. 75-3223(e), and amendments thereto.
- (4) The staff of the office of revisor of statutes, the legislative research department and the division of legislative administrative services shall provide such assistance as may be requested by the task force.
- (g) The water program task force shall:
- (1) Evaluate major risks to the quality and quantity of the state's water supply, including any impact on current and future economic growth and population stability;
- (2) steps that the state must take to define and achieve a future supply of water for Kansans; and
- (3) evaluate current funding for water in the state and determine whether such funding is sufficient to address the water issues included in the state water plan, including the state's current and future water infrastructure needs.
- (h) The task force shall prepare and submit a preliminary report on or before January 31, 2026, and a final report on or before January 31, 2027, to the house of representatives committees on agriculture and natural resources and water and the senate committee on agriculture and natural resources or any successor committees and the governor. Such reports shall include recommendations on:
- (1) The water program's long-term structure to address the state's current and future water needs, including, but not limited to:
- (A) The roles and responsibilities of the state, municipalities and regional entities;
- (B) how the program's investments and successes should be evaluated, including gathering any stakeholder input; and
- (C) criteria to determine program investments, including geographic diversity of such investments; and
- (2) funding for the water program, including, but not limited to:
- (A) New dedicated moneys or investments for the state water plan fund;
- (B) changes to any existing fees or moneys dedicated to the state water plan fund; and
- (C) any additional funding sources or tools necessary to ensure that the financial resources are adequate to address the state's water issues.
- (i) (1) On or before June 30, 2025, the co-chairs of the task force shall jointly appoint five individuals to a water planning work group. Such individuals may be members of the water program task force but are not required to be members of the task force. The individuals shall be attorneys, engineers, hydrologists, natural resource planners or others with relevant experience with Kansas water issues.
- (2) The work group shall meet regularly as may be necessary to conduct a study of the state water resource planning act, K.S.A. 82a-901 et seq., and amendments thereto, and develop draft legislation that proposes

modernization of such act. The work group shall work under the direction of the task force and submit ongoing reports to the task force relating to:

- (A) How the state water plan is created;
  - (B) what the state water plan should prioritize;
  - (C) how the state water plan is implemented;
  - (D) how recommendations for state water plan appropriations are made to the legislature;
  - (E) any future studies that might be undertaken; and
  - (F) any other related or relevant matters.
- (3) If approved by the legislative coordinating council, members of the work group shall be paid amounts for expenses, mileage and subsistence as provided in K.S.A. 75-3223(e), and amendments thereto.
- (4) The staff of the office of revisor of statutes, the legislative research department and the division of legislative administrative services shall provide such assistance as may be requested by the work group.
- (5) Any state agency or entity that is involved in the management or study of water in Kansas shall provide information and support to the work group upon request.
- (j) This section shall expire on July 1, 2027.

Sec. 2. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the Kansas register.

**Doc. No. 053092**

State of Kansas

## Secretary of State

### Certification of New State Laws

I, Scott Schwab, Secretary of State of the State of Kansas, do hereby certify that the following bill is a correct copy of the original enrolled bill now on file in my office.

Scott Schwab  
Secretary of State

---

(Published in the Kansas Register April 24, 2025.)

## House Bill No. 2242

AN ACT concerning federal jurisdiction; relating to federal property; authorizing the governor to accept requests from the federal government to establish concurrent jurisdiction in certain circumstances; amending K.S.A. 27-102 and repealing the existing section.

*Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:*

Section 1. K.S.A. 27-102 is hereby amended to read as follows: 27-102. (a) That exclusive jurisdiction over and within any lands so acquired by the United States shall be, and the same is hereby, ceded to the United States, for all purposes; saving, however, to the state of Kansas the right to serve therein any civil or criminal process issued under the authority of the state, in any action on account of rights acquired, obligations incurred or crimes committed in said state, but outside the boundaries of such land; and saving further to said state the right to tax the property and franchises of any railroad, bridge or other corporations within the boundaries of such lands; but the jurisdiction hereby ceded shall not continue after the United States shall cease to own said lands.

*(b) (1) The state of Kansas authorizes the governor to grant requests from the United States to establish concurrent jurisdiction over land owned by the United States for military purposes within the boundaries of Kansas. Concurrent jurisdiction shall be effective upon completion of:*

*(A) A written offer for concurrent jurisdiction being sent to the governor by the principal officer of the military installation or other authorized representative of the United States having supervision and control over the land that:*

*(i) Clearly states the subject matter for the concurrent jurisdiction request;*

*(ii) provides the metes and bounds description of the boundary of the concurrent jurisdiction offer; and*

*(iii) indicates whether the request includes future contiguous expansion of land acquired for military purposes; and*

*(B) the governor accepting the offer in writing that clearly confirms each of the elements of the offer that are accepted; and*

*(C) the governor recording and indexing the offer, acceptance and metes and bounds description of the boundary of concurrent jurisdiction with the secretary of state who shall publish such information in the Kansas register.*

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

(2) *After concurrent jurisdiction is effective:*

(A) *The governor shall send a copy of the information provided to the secretary of state to the official who made the initial written offer; and*

(B) *any state or local agency may enter into a reciprocal agreement or memorandum of understanding with any agency of the United States for the coordination and designation of responsibilities related to the concurrent jurisdiction.*

Sec. 2. K.S.A. 27-102 is hereby repealed.

Sec. 3. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the Kansas register.

**Doc. No. 053093**

## Index to Administrative Regulations

This index lists in numerical order the new, amended, and revoked administrative regulations with a future effective date and the Kansas Register issue in which the regulation can be found. A complete listing and the complete text of all currently effective regulations required to be published in the Kansas Administrative Regulations can be found at [http://www.sos.ks.gov/publications/pubs\\_kar.aspx](http://www.sos.ks.gov/publications/pubs_kar.aspx).

### AGENCY 111: KANSAS LOTTERY

A complete index listing all regulations filed by the Kansas Lottery from 1988 through 2000 can be found in the Vol. 19, No. 52, December 28, 2000 Kansas Register. A list of regulations filed from 2001 through 2003 can be found in the Vol. 22, No. 52, December 25, 2003 Kansas Register. A list of regulations filed from 2004 through 2005 can be found in the Vol. 24, No. 52, December 29, 2005 Kansas Register. A list of regulations filed from 2006 through 2007 can be found in the Vol. 26, No. 52, December 27, 2007 Kansas Register. A list of regulations filed from 2008 through November 2009 can be found in the Vol. 28, No. 53, December 31, 2009 Kansas Register. A list of regulations filed from December 1, 2009, through December 21, 2011, can be found in the Vol. 30, No. 52, December 29, 2011 Kansas Register. A list of regulations filed from December 22, 2011, through November 6, 2013, can be found in the Vol. 32, No. 52, December 26, 2013 Kansas Register. A list of regulations filed from November 7, 2013, through December 31, 2015, can be found in the Vol. 34, No. 53, December 31, 2015 Kansas Register. A list of regulations filed from 2016 through 2017, can be found in the Vol. 36, No. 52, December 28, 2017 Kansas Register. A list of regulations filed from 2018 through 2019, can be found in the Vol. 38, No. 52, December 26, 2019 Kansas Register. A list of regulations filed from 2020 through 2021, can be found in the Vol. 40, No. 52, December 30, 2021 Kansas Register. A list of regulations filed from 2022 through 2023, can be found in the Vol. 42, No. 52, December 28, 2023 Kansas Register.

<b>Reg. No.</b>	<b>Action</b>	<b>Register</b>
111-2-331	New	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-4-3547	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 31
111-4-3771	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-4-3772	New	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-4-3773	New	Vol. 43, Issue 12
111-4-3774	New	Vol. 43, Issue 14
111-4-3775	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-4-3776	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-4-3777	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-4-3778	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-4-3779	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-4-3780	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-4-3781	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-4-3782	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-4-3783	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-4-3784	New	Vol. 43, Issue 30
111-4-3785	New	Vol. 43, Issue 30
111-4-3786	New	Vol. 43, Issue 30
111-4-3787	New	Vol. 43, Issue 30
111-4-3788	New	Vol. 43, Issue 30
111-4-3789	New	Vol. 43, Issue 30
111-4-3790	New	Vol. 43, Issue 31
111-4-3791	New	Vol. 43, Issue 31
111-4-3792	New	Vol. 43, Issue 31

# Kansas Register

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

111-4-3793	New	Vol. 43, Issue 31
111-4-3794	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3795	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3796	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3797	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3798	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3799	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3800	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3801	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3802	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3803	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3804	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3805	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3806	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3807	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-4-3808	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-4-3809	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-4-3810	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-4-3811	New	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-4-3812	New	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-4-3813	New	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-4-3814	New	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-4-3815	New	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-4-3816	New	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-4-3817	New	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-4-3818	New	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-4-3819	New	Vol. 44, Issue 3
111-4-3820	New	Vol. 44, Issue 3
111-4-3821	New	Vol. 44, Issue 7
111-4-3822	New	Vol. 44, Issue 12
111-4-3823	New	Vol. 44, Issue 12
111-4-3824	New	Vol. 44, Issue 12
111-5-23	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-5-24	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-5-28	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-5-30	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-5-181	Amended	Vol. 44, Issue 3
111-5-182	Amended	Vol. 44, Issue 3
111-5-184	Amended	Vol. 44, Issue 3
111-5-185	Revoked	Vol. 44, Issue 3
111-9-233	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-9-234	New	Vol. 43, Issue 14
111-9-235	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-9-236	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-9-237	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-15-1	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 31
111-15-3	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 31
111-18-5	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 12
111-19-169	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-19-170	New	Vol. 43, Issue 12

# Kansas Register

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

111-19-171	New	Vol. 43, Issue 12
111-19-172	New	Vol. 43, Issue 12
111-19-173	New	Vol. 43, Issue 12
111-19-174	New	Vol. 43, Issue 14
111-19-175	New	Vol. 43, Issue 14
111-19-176	New	Vol. 43, Issue 14
111-19-177	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-19-178	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-19-179	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-19-180	New	Vol. 43, Issue 29
111-19-181	New	Vol. 43, Issue 30
111-19-182	New	Vol. 43, Issue 30
111-19-183	New	Vol. 43, Issue 31
111-19-184	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-19-185	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-19-186	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-19-187	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-19-188	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-19-189	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 47
111-19-190	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-19-191	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-19-192	New	Vol. 43, Issue 46
111-19-193	New	Vol. 43, Issue 47
111-19-194	New	Vol. 43, Issue 47
111-19-195	New	Vol. 43, Issue 47
111-19-196	New	Vol. 44, Issue 3
111-19-197	New	Vol. 44, Issue 3
111-19-198	New	Vol. 44, Issue 3
111-19-199	New	Vol. 44, Issue 3
111-19-200	New	Vol. 44, Issue 7
111-19-201	New	Vol. 44, Issue 7
111-19-202	New	Vol. 44, Issue 12
111-19-203	New	Vol. 44, Issue 12
111-19-204	New	Vol. 44, Issue 12
111-20-1	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-2	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-3	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-4	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-5	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-6	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-7	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-8	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-9	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-10	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-11	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-12	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-13	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-14	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-15	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-16	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5

# Kansas Register

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

111-20-17	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-18	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-19	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-20	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-21	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-22	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-20-23	New	Vol. 43, Issue 5
111-21-1	New	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-21-2	New	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-21-3	New	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-21-4	New	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-21-5	New	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-21-6	New	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-21-7	New	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-21-8	New	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-21-9	New	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-21-10	New	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-21-11	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-21-12	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-21-13	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-21-14	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-22-1	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-2	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-3	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-4	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-5	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-6	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-7	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-8	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-9	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-10	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-11	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-12	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-22-13	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-23-1	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-23-2	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-23-3	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-23-4	New	Vol. 43, Issue 36
111-23-5	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-23-6	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-23-7	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-23-8	New	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-23-9	New	Vol. 44, Issue 4
111-23-10	New	Vol. 44, Issue 4
111-23-11	New	Vol. 44, Issue 7
111-23-12	New	Vol. 44, Issue 7
111-23-13	New	Vol. 44, Issue 7
111-23-14	New	Vol. 44, Issue 12
111-23-15	New	Vol. 44, Issue 12
111-301-4	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 45

# Kansas Register

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

111-301-5	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-301-41	Amended	Vol. 44, Issue 4
111-301-43	Amended	Vol. 44, Issue 4
111-313-1	New	Vol. 43, Issue 47
111-313-2	New	Vol. 43, Issue 47
111-313-3	New	Vol. 43, Issue 47
111-313-4	New	Vol. 43, Issue 47
111-313-5	New	Vol. 43, Issue 47
111-313-6	New	Vol. 43, Issue 47
111-501-68	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-401-35	Amended	Vol. 44, Issue 4
111-501-44	Amended	Vol. 44, Issue 4
111-501-113	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-501-120	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 45
111-501-147	Amended	Vol. 44, Issue 12
111-501-155	Amended	Vol. 43, Issue 11
111-501-161	New	Vol. 43, Issue 30

## AGENCY 112: RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION

<b>Reg. No.</b>	<b>Action</b>	<b>Register</b>
112-201-1	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-2	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-3	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-4	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-5	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-6	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-7	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-8	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-9	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-10	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-11	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-12	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-13	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-14	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-15	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-16	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-17	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-18	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-19	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-20	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-21	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-22	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-201-23	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-202-1	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-202-2	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-203-1	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-203-2	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-203-3	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-203-4	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44

# Kansas Register

---

Volume 44 - Issue 17 - April 24, 2025

[Table of Contents](#)

112-203-5	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-203-6	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-203-7	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-203-8	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-204-1	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-204-2	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-204-3	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-204-4	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-204-5	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-204-6	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44
112-204-7	New (T)	Vol. 42, Issue 44

# Kansas Register

---

The Kansas Register is an official publication of the state of Kansas, published by authority of K.S.A. 75-430. The Kansas Register is published weekly and a cumulative index is published annually by the Kansas Secretary of State.

Reproduction of the publication in its entirety or for commercial purposes is prohibited without prior permission. Official enactments of the Kansas Legislature and proposed and adopted administrative regulations of state agencies may be reproduced in any form without permission.

Current and back issues of the Kansas Register (HTML and PDF Format) can be found at <https://www.sos.ks.gov/publications/kansas-register.html>.

## **Register Office:**

1st Floor, Memorial Hall  
785-368-8095  
[kansasregister@ks.gov](mailto:kansasregister@ks.gov)

## **Published by**

Scott Schwab  
Secretary of State  
1st Floor, Memorial Hall  
120 SW 10th Ave.  
Topeka, KS 66612-1594  
785-296-4564  
<https://www.sos.ks.gov>